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“To scale greater heights on the back of
China’s rapid growth.”

We are

e 4th largest producer of acetate solvents in the world
and largest in China

e Business focused — core business of solvents,
coatings and lubricants

e China focused — 15 production plants
in China

Dedication Breeds Professionalism
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Group Aspirations

To continually seek the optimal returns for
the benefit of our employees and our
shareholders through staying close to our
core businesses and thereby enhancing and
exploiting our competitive advantages.

We pledge always to:

v actively research for and manufacture innovative customer-oriented
petrochemical products;

v support customers with our wow services;

v enable our staff to achieve continuous self-improvement;

v create with joint forces and share the fruitful results of the Group!

Group Management Committee
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Five Year Financial Summary

BZE=A=1+—HLHFE Year ended 31st March,

—EELF ZEEXRE TTRF TENF —ZTT=F
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
FHET FET FHET FHET FExT
¥i8 Results HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Turnover 3,913,835 3,329,670 2,677,599 1,798,614 1,422,756
ERER
Profit from operations 347,951 239,953 183,860 127,375 118,273
FEEA
Interest expense (26,251) (21,538) (4,626) (3,041) (2,417)
HERE I RET > BA -
Gain on disposal of leasehold land and building - - - - 8,772
FREL AT SR
Profit before taxation 321,700 218,415 179,234 124,334 124,628
#iE
Taxation (51,982) (21,681) (13,401) (12,760) (5,322)
ARE AT
Profit for the year 269,718 196,734 165,833 111,574 119,306
FEEER
Attributable to
RRATRR
Equity holders of the Company 223,636 168,389 123,150 96,161 103,217
DERFER
Minority interests 46,082 28,345 42,683 15,413 16,089
269,718 196,734 165,833 111,574 119,306
B EEl Per share data
SREF GE{L)
Earnings per share (HK cents)
v EL7K Basic 46.6 35.5 26.3 20.7 21.1
v #58 Diluted 46.1 352 26.1 20.6 20.9
BRES B
Dividend per share (HK cents)* 20.0 14.0 12.0 10.0 9.0
¥ tL# Financial ratios
R EEERE
Return on average total assets 10.8% 9.6% 8.8% 9.0% 12.0%
FHRRESEIRE
Return on average shareholders' funds 22.4% 20.4% 17.1% 14.9% 17.2%
FIS L= (f28)
Interest cover (times) 13.3 1.1 39.7 419 48.9
* R BRBREEEERRE2.0580 -
* Dividend per share in 2007 included the special dividend HK2.0 cents per share.
M=HA=+—H At 31st March,
—ZTLE ZBEAE SZTERE RIMNF —2F=F
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
FHET FET FET FExT FET
HEA A% Balance Sheet HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERE
Total assets 2,263,205 1,876,324 1,620,091 1,181,181 957,865
BEH8E
Total liabilities (1,029,518) (893,103) (804,962) (465,792) (313,915)
1,233,687 983,221 815,129 715,389 643,950
ARATRRELERS
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 1,103,808 893,951 759,774 676,456 612,116
DERRER
Minority interests 129,879 89,270 55,355 38,933 31,834
1,233,687 983,221 815,129 715,389 643,950
FRITIEEHRRE SR
Net bank borrowings to shareholders' funds 14% 28% 31% 13% N/A

_
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BEBE(TER) BRRE G810
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228 Turnover

—ETLE —TTAE "2TRF "TENF "BT=F

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
FHET FHET FHxT FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
et
2,241,252 1,973,581 1,584,016 868,370 621,823
Solvents
. 1,442,874 1,196,034 1,067,872 873,515 720,915
Coatings
AR A
IE/E.E 205,524 219,314 114,877 104,537 118,624
Lubricants
e 120,727 64,023 22,683 23,151 18,056
Others ! ' ! ! !
Elimination (96,541) (123,282) (111,849) (70,959) (56,662)
Eo3 ]

3,913,836 3,329,670 2,677,599 1,798,614 1,422,756

Total
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BRI L RF 2 HE DM Analysis Of Turnover And Profit From Operations For The Past Five Years

&3 A Profit from operations

—EELF ZEEXRF ZTRFE —TETNFE —TET=F
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
FHET FHET FHT FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
an
252,324 157,262 155,483 66,860 62,046
Solvents
) 88,501 80,568 53,674 62,584 52,311
Coatings
NE DR
Lubricants (6,384) (296) (22,742) (4,110) 3,133
e 13,952 5,736 591 4,295 3,336
Others ! ! ! !
Elimination 111 (260) 16 (100) (103)
348,504 243,010 187,022 129,529 120,723
WA
T e . 5,375 1,713 750 648 804
nterest income
AATEEEA
Unallocated corporate expenses (5,928) (4,770) (3.912) (2,802) (3,254)
oy 347,951 239,953 183,860 127,375 118,273

Total
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Chairman's Statement

Business Review

It gives me great pleasure to report to our shareholders our business
performance for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2007. Over
the past year, China's economy continued to grow, creating strong
demand for the Group’s products. At the same time, the Group successfully
improved the competitiveness of each of the core businesses. As a result,
both turnover and profit attributable to shareholders reached record
levels of HK$3,913,835,000 and HK$223,636,000 respectively,
representing increases of 18% and 33%, respectively. Furthermore,
a series of pragmatic measures taken by the Group achieved the anticipated
results: accounts receivable, inventory, and capital investments decreased
and the quality of earnings improved. Despite the strong turnover growth,
the Group's gearing ratio declined to only 14%, from 28% at 31st
March, 2006 and 31% at 30th September, 2006. The Board recommends
a final dividend of HK12.0 cents per share which, together with the
interim dividend and special dividend of HK8.0 cents already paid, makes
the total dividend for the year HK20.0 cents per share, representing a
growth of 43% over last year's total dividend of HK14.0 cents. The
Group's return on shareholders’ funds remained at a relatively high level

of over 22%.
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Business Review (continued)

During the period under review, Hong Kong's export industries continued
to weaken and as a result, approximately 90% of the Group’s turnover
was made in Mainland China. This percentage is projected to be even
higher in the future. The overall business environment in the past year
was extremely challenging. In terms of costs, raw material prices were
less volatile but remained at a high level, while various operating expenses
continued to increase. Furthermore, due to intensifying competition
within the industry, it was difficult to transfer the major hikes in costs
to our customers. In addition, authorities in China expressed their
mounting concerns for the safety of the chemicals industry and tightened
their control and supervision over the industry. Under these circumstances,
it was increasing challenging to achieve sustainable growth in our core
businesses and reach our targeted profitability levels. Over the past year,
the Group placed significant emphasis on controlling costs of the core
businesses and was successful in improving net profit margin from 5.1%
in the previous financial year to the current 5.7%. While the Group
depends on sustainable growth in our core businesses, we also see the
improvement of the quality of earnings and profitability as our top

priority.

_
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EfE$RE Chairman's Statement

Solvents

The solvents division, the largest of our core businesses, recorded
unprecedented results during the period under review, with turnover
reaching HK$2,241,251,000, an increase of 14% over the previous year.
Turnover volume for raw solvents remained stable compared to last year,
as demand far exceeded our available supply. For the financial year ended
31st March, 2007, the solvents division recorded operating profit of
HK$252,324,000, a significant increase of 60% compared to 2006.
While the considerable growth in operating profit could be partially
attributed to the favourable but temporary operating environment for
raw solvents in the first half of the year, the work of our “Solvents Task
Force” also played an important role. The task force was able to pool
the Group’s resources and efforts on research and development activities,
optimize product formulation, reduce production costs and enhance

profits.

Faced with increasing demand and intensifying competition in the market,
in order to maintain our position as the largest solvent producer in China,
our top priority is to increase our production capacity and further realize
the advantages of economies of scale. In addition to the expanding
production capacity at our current plant, the Group is also closely

monitoring the solvents market, actively and diligently looking for potential

acquisition opportunities to further boost sales and lower logistic costs.
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Coatings

Over the past year, coatings-related industries such as real estate,
publishing, packaging and manufacturing of light industrial products
greatly benefited from the rapid growth of the China economy. As a
result, the Group’s coatings division was able to sustain its strong growth
momentum and recorded turnover of HK$1,442,874,000, an increase
of 21% over the previous year, while operating profit increased 10%
to HK$88,501,000. Growth in operating profit was unable to match
the growth in turnover and fell slightly short of management's expectation
primarily due to an increase in marketing expenses in order to further
promote our brands. For many years, the Group’s vision for the coatings
division has been the parallel development of both industrial coatings
and domestic architectural paints. While the domestic architectural paints
segment faces stiffer competition, it has higher growth potential relative
to industrial coatings. Recently, international players in the paints industry
have entered the coatings market in China, which has led to a considerable
shake-up in the industry. The Group believes this is a tremendous
opportunity to increase our market share and is determined to steadily
increase spending on marketing campaigns to enhance the exposure
of our brands and corporate image. We also strive to gain recognition

as “China Top Brand” for our other brands under the coatings division.

The Group will also invest HK$100 million to optimize logistics for the
coatings division. The capacity expansion for our three factories in
Chengdu, Shantou, and Shanghai is expected to be completed in the
first half of the current financial year while the Tungxiang, Zhejiang plant
is expected to be completed in August 2008. The capacity of four factories

combined will be able to serve our expanding coatings business for the

next five years.
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Lubricants

The operating environment for lubricants continued to be extremely
difficult last year. While pressure on shortage of base oil supply alleviated
and prices softened in the second half of the year, competition significantly
intensified as our major competitors aggressively sold their products at
substantial discounts to decrease their inventory levels. As a result, gross
profit margin was severely eroded. The lubricants division recorded
turnover of HK$205,524,000, a decrease of 6% compared to last year
while operating loss increased to HK$6,384,000.

Over the past year, various aspects of the restructuring plan for the
lubricants division were implemented, including the restructuring of the
product portfolio, the continuing development of automotive and
industrial lubricants, and the efforts to decrease expenses. In particular,
the problem of decreasing turnover for both the industrial lubricants
and specialty lubricants segments was under control and there was a
marked improvement in turnover of 12% and 4%, respectively, and
gross profit margins also improved. Furthermore, the agreement between
the Group and Shell signed in October 2006 regarding the acquisition
of Shell’s interest in the Zhanjiang blending plant became effective in
January 2007. The Group believes that the acquisition will help the

lubricants division decrease its operating costs in the future.

For the coming year, the focus of the division will continue to be
developing the industrial and specialty lubricants segments and also
controlling operating costs. As the price of base oils stabilize, we are
optimistic that the lubricants business will become profitable in the

coming year.

-
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Lomon Titanium Limited (“Lomon")

Since becoming a strategic investor with an 8% stake in July 2005, the
Group has maintained a strong relationship with Lomon’s management
and has closely monitored its operations through its management’s
monthly reports. In October 2006, Lomon became the largest manufacturer
of titanium dioxide in China after doubling its production capacity from

40,000 tons to 80,000 tons per year.

New Group Management Structure

Beginning on 1st April, 2008, the Group will gradually implement a new
group management structure in which the role of the Chairman of the
Board and the role of the Chief Executive Officer of the Group's
management committee will be separated and held by two individuals.
The Board's principal duties are setting policies, monitoring the execution
of such policies, and providing assistance to the overall management
of the Group. The Group’s management committee will be responsible
for executing the policies and implementing strategic plans, supervising
the performance of the business units, and ensuring targets set by the
Board are met. While the responsibilities of the Board and the management
committee are clearly separated, the two bodies will nevertheless work
closely together. We believe that the new group management structure
will significantly improve our corporate governance and will help the

Group'’s expansion in the future.
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EE$RE Chairman's Statement

New Logo Of The Group

25th October, 2006 marked the 35th anniversary of the founding of
the Group. We have chosen this special day to unveil a creative, new
logo. The new logo signifies the Group’s determination to continuously
innovate, reform, and develop. While the new logo is largely based on
the old logo, it employs a new and refreshing jade green color as the
focus. It demonstrates that the Group’s future progress will continue to
be based on our core principles of dedication and professionalism, while
moving forward with the times. The jade green color symbolizes the
dynamism of our businesses as well as our commitment to the
environment. We are filled with confidence that the new logo will lead

the Group to a new passage to greater accomplishments and success.

Corporate Citizenship/Social Responsibility

We fully understand that, as a Hong Kong-listed company with operations
entrenched in China, we must fulfill our responsibility as good corporate
citizens and give back to society by both actively participating in different
levels of social work and providing monetary support to charities. However,
we also recognize that it is extremely difficult for the Group to support
the countless projects in society today in need of support, therefore,
we strive to help projects that are in line with the Group’s core values,

such as those related to environmental protection and education.

—
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Environmental Protection

As a company engaged in the chemicals business, we recognize the
importance of environmental protection; therefore, the Group constantly
strives to educate and increase awareness of environmental protection
among our employees. From using both sides of each piece of paper
and switching off lights and air conditioning when not in use, to abiding
to the strictest and most advanced environmental protection standards
when designing our new plants, the Group has demonstrated our resolve

to help protect the environment.

In addition, the Group has established a task force to further increase
understanding of key environmental issues among our employees. We
have participated in the “Tree Planting Challenge”, organized by the
Friends of the Earth, in 2006 and 2007, to enhance enthusiasm of

environmental protection through meaningful and charitable activities.

Education

The Group also believes that in order for China to remain stable and
strong, it must start from education. To this end, we have greatly
supported charitable projects benefiting education in China over the
years. Last October, the Group collected donations totaling HK$556,900
from its customers, suppliers, and associates to congratulate the Group’s
35th anniversary, and donated it to the “Sowers Action” in subsidizing
the organization to build schools for students in China. The Group also
donated RMB100,000 to the Education Trust Fund for Machong Town
in Guangdong. In the future, we plan to be actively involved in various

charitable activities to earnestly fulfill our responsibility as good corporate

citizens and give back to society.
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FEE R Chairman's Statement

Liquidity And Financial Resources

Through the adoption of a prudent financial management strategy over
the years with particular emphasis on the control of accounts receivable
and inventory levels, and increasing cash inflow from strong profit growth
helped the Group’s gearing ratio to improve significantly. As at 31st
March, 2007, the Group’s gearing ratio (as measured by net bank
borrowings as a percentage of shareholders’ equity) was 14%, a significant

improvement over the same period last year of 28%.

As at 31st March, 2007, the total gross bank borrowings of the Group
was HK$484,237,000 (at 31st March, 2006: HK$513,518,000).
Out of this total bank borrowings, HK$428,601,000 was repayable
within one year, and HK$13,260,000 was denominated in Renminbi
(at 31st March, 2006: HK$347,633,000 was repayable within one year,
and HK$39,992,000 was denominated in Renminbi). Loans repayable
after one year at 31st March, 2007 was HK$55,636,000 (at 31st March,
2006: HK$165,885,000). All these loans carried interest at floating rates.

As at 31st March, 2007, a total of 16 banks in Hong Kong, Macau and
PRC granted banking facilities totaling HK$1,446,560,000 to the Group
(at 31st March, 2006: HK$1,191,713,000), 74% of these facilities were
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and the rest in Renminbi. The Group's
available banking facilities and its future cash flow from operations will
provide sufficient funds to the Group to meet its present operational
requirements as well as for the further development of its business in

the foreseeable future.

On the back of China’s trade surplus, Renminbi has shown considerable
strength in the past year and it is expected that the Renminbi’s strength
will continue in the near future. In view of the current strength of the
Renminbi, coupled with the fact that the majority of the Group’s assets
are located in the PRC, and the majority of its income is also generated
in Renminbi, the management considers that no hedging measures are
necessary at this stage, apart from using Renminbi bank borrowings to
fund part of its operational requirements and investments. The Group
will continue to strive to achieve the optimal balance between lowering
the costs of borrowings and minimizing currency exposure by funding

it's investments through either Renminbi or Hong Kong dollar bank loans.

-
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Employees

As at 31st March, 2007, there were a total of 3791 employees of which
158 were based in Hong Kong and 3633 were based in other parts in

the PRC.

Employees receive competitive remuneration packages including salary,
variable bonus that is linked to attainment of the Group and individual
performance as well as share options. The remuneration and incentive
systems are reviewed from time to time, so as to ensure the employees
obtain equitable and fair packages and the Group is able to attract and

retain competent employees.

The group pledges always to enable our employees to achieve continuous
self-improvement. With the Trainee Program already in place for several
years, top graduates from tertiary institutes in Hong Kong, China and
overseas are recruited and trained to join management level or become
technical experts, thereby sharpening the competitive edge of the Group
in management and technology. The group promotes lifelong learning.
In-house and external training programs are offered to enrich the
competencies of our employees. Moreover, the group has an educational
subsidy scheme to encourage employees to upgrade themselves both

in their work and in personal development.

_
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EfE$RE Chairman's Statement

Prospects

Looking ahead, | am fully confident of the Group's future development
as we can see increasing stability on China’s political situation, healthy
and sustainable rapid growth in the economy, growing domestic demand
will extend to the less-developed regions and provinces of China. At the
same time, China is solidifying its role as “World's factory”. Yesterday's
Pearl River Delta, today’s Yangtze River Delta, and tomorrow’s Bohai River
Delta all provide an appealing investment environment that will attract
more and more international manufacturing companies to China. For
these reasons, the Group will continue to have unlimited opportunities
for long-term growth and development. Yip’s Chemical, as before, will
be dedicated and focused on the Chinese market and the chemicals
industry. We will continue to seek opportunities to grow our business.
At the same time, we will actively develop our human capital, recruit
the elite from all ends of the spectrum to join the Group and provide
ample development opportunities such that they can contribute to our

future and continue to gain greater returns for our shareholders.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to our employees for their relentless hard work and contribution to the
success of the Group, and also to our friends and business associates

from all sectors for their continued trust and support.

Ip Chi Shing, Tony

Chairman

Hong Kong, 3rd July, 2007
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The Group’s Three Core Businesses Are:
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Solvents

Coatings

i 8 b
Lubricants
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Solvents

The solvents division produces environment-friendly industrial organic
solvents, which can be grouped into two types: (1) raw solvents, including
ethyl acetate, normal butyl acetate, mixed butyl acetate and iso-butyl
acetate, widely used in industries such as coatings, tannery, medicine
and adhesives; (2) mixed solvents, commonly known as thinners, are
mostly used in the toy, electronics, printing and furniture industries.
As the Group’s largest core business, solvents are produced and sold
through various subsidiaries. With a production capacity of 330,000
tons, it is China’s largest producer of solvents, while its production of
raw solvents ranks fourth in the world. Economies of scale, stringent

quality control, efficient operations and strategic locations are all factors

that contribute to the success of the Group’s solvent business.
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Coatings

Coatings are used in an extensive range of industries, and are often
applied during the final phase of production. Industries such as construction
and project refurbishment, food and gift packaging, toys, electronics,
furniture, and printing all consume significant quantities of different
kinds of coatings. The Group’s coatings division was set up in Hong Kong
in 1982, and has established a good reputation in the market. At present,
the coating business comprises five brand names under four product
categories: “Bauhinia” for paints, “Bauhinia Variegata” for inks, “Galaxxo”
for varnishes, “Da Chang” for resins, and “Ad-Coat” for insulating

varnishes.
Paints—Brand name: “Bauhinia”

“Bauhinia” paints consists of several product lines, ranging from domestic
architectural paints (such as water-based emulsion and oil based paints)
to industrial paints (such as furniture paints and plastic paints). Since
1992, Hong Kong’s Housing Department and the Architectural Services
Department have placed “Bauhinia” paints on the approved list of paints
for all kinds of large-scale construction and housing projects. In China,
“Bauhinia” paints have been used in more than 500 key projects. At the
same time, “Bauhinia” paints for the toy industry has also successfully

passed the very stringent tests by the manufacturers of many of the

world’s famous toy brands, and placed on their approval lists of suppliers.
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Coati NQgS (Continued)

Paints—Brand name: “Bauhinia”

In 2005, “Bauhinia” paints was named “China Top Brand”, the esteemed
award organized by the China Quality and Technology Monitory Bureau.
“Bauhinia” paints was selected out of more than 8,000 coatings
manufacturers. As one of the first batch of paint manufacturers to receive
this honour, the award recognized “Bauhinia” paints’ outstanding

performance in quality, reputation, and customer satisfaction.

Inks—Brand name: “Bauhinia Variegata”

Since its establishment in 1998, the inks business has specialized in the
development of plastic printing inks and gravure inks. In 2005, total
production and sales exceeded 16,000 tons, making it the largest producer
of plastic and gravure inks in China. In recent years, the Group has
introduced various environment-friendly products such as aromatic-free
inks, alcohol-based inks, and water-based inks in response to market
demands. To further improve the broadbased competitiveness of the
business, the Group commenced production of offset printing inks in
2006. As the potential demand for offset printing inks is even greater
than plastic film printing inks, it is expected that the new development
is poised to take the Group’s ink business to greater heights. “Bauhinia
Variegata” has enjoyed excellent reputation and support from customers
since its launch, and was an instant success. In 2005, following the award
of “Famous Brand of Guangdong Province”, the brand was also granted

the “Consumer Satisfaction Product of Guangdong Province” award.
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Specialty Varnish—Brand name: “Galaxxo”

“Galaxxo" is a specialty varnish for a range of printing and post-printing
processes, such as the glossy coatings of coloured boxes, shoe boxes,
books and card stationery. The “Galaxxo” series of products are very
popular in the printing industry with over 300 loyal customers. Its blister
packing varnishes and environment-friendly, water-based varnishes are
especially well-received by the market. In recent years, the business has
implemented advanced automatic production systems, making it the
first Hong Kong manufacturer in the industry to employ state-of-the-
art facilities to produce blister packing varnishes, UV varnishes and paper

laminating glues.

Resins—Brand name: “Da Chang”

Resins form the backbone of coatings. It accounts for 60 to 80 percent
of the total weight of paints and 30 to 40 percent of the cost of paints.
The business, operated under the “Da Chang” brand, specializes in the
production of resins for paints manufacturing. The excellent quality of
Da Chang resins and its customer-oriented services has fuelled sales
growth with over 100 loyal customers, and has also established a good

reputation for the Group in China’s resins industry.
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Lubricants

Brands: “Hercules” automotive and industrial lubricants, and

"Pacoil” specialty lubricants

“Hercules" automotive and industrial lubricants

The Group commenced its lubricants manufacturing and supply business
in 1992, the comprehensive product line of “Hercules” brand automotive
and industrial lubricants includes engine oils, gear oils brake fluids, anti-
freeze, bearing greases, automatic transmission fluids, hydraulic oils,
compressor oils, industrial gear oils, steam turbine oils, heat transfer oils,
circulating oils, and industrial greases. The Group employs cutting-edge
international additives technology in its products to ensure that its quality
keeps pace with global developments. Many Hercules products have
been accredited by standards authorities worldwide, including the

American Petroleum Institute (API), Cummins, JASO, Volvo, and are the

OEM-specified lubricants of many equipment suppliers.




#7%/) Business Profiles

58 ()

(% | BN ERR®

20056 - KEEAPFRAFRATDEE

B [ERAFFERAT ] HERRFEDE
JERS - LUHES | AERMENEERBHRT
ERARSETIX  MEBMNT - 2 - TE - fi
RBTF - B BB RE - BERE o M

[ A% | FR L3R Sumico, Castrol-Optimol, Castrol-
Tribol, Cincinnati Milacron ;8 # @ IEEIR&RER
WRE SR MR SISEEFRE TS o

_

Lubricants (continued)

"Pacoil” specialty lubricants

In 2005, Yip’s Chemical combined forces with Pacific Oil and Chemical
Company Ltd. to form a new holding company, “Yip's Pacific Limited”
for the joint development of specialty lubricants. The “Pacoil” specialty
lubricant series is extensively used in industries such as metal processing,
plastics, automobiles, aeronautics, electronics, electrical appliances,
weaving and timber, as well as watches and clocks. Yip’s Pacific Limited
is also the appointed sole distributor in China for many global lubricant
brands including Sumico, Castrol-Optimol, Castrol-Tribol, and Cincinnati

Milacron, bringing the best specialty lubricants into the China market.
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Directors' And Management

RREBENE
Ms. Ip Fung Kuen

Executives' Profiles

BEFEHEE
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, Stephen

Exceutive Directors

Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Tony, aged 59, is the co-founder of the Group. He
is the chairman and managing director of the Group. Mr. Ip has over
30 years of experience in the manufacture of and trading in petrochemical
products. He is the brother of Ms. Ip Fung Kuen and Mr. Yip Tsz Hin,

Stephen, deputy chairmen and executive directors of the Group.

Ms. Ip Fung Kuen, aged 56, is the co-founder of the Group. She is a
deputy chairman and an executive director of the Group and is also the
chairman of Hong Kong Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing (Greater China)
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group. She has over 20 years of
experience in paints manufacturing. She holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Chinese Literature from National Taiwan University. She is the sister of
Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Tony and Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, Stephen, executive directors
of the Group.

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, Stephen, aged 48, joined the Group in 1977. He is
a deputy chairman and an executive director of the Group and is also
the chairman of a number of subsidiaries of the Group including Yip’s
Ink and Chemicals (Group) Limited, Jiangmen Handsome Chemical
Development Limited, Jiangmen Thansome Solvents Production Limited
and Jiangmen Heng Wah Chemical Development Limited. He has 30
years of experience in the manufacture of and trading in petrochemical
products. He is the brother of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Tony and Ms. Ip Fung

Kuen, executive directors of the Group.
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TEREE
Mr. Ting Hon Yam

Mr. Wong Kam Yim, Kenny

Exceutive Directors (continued)

Mr. Ng Siu Ping, George, aged 49, has been the finance director of
the Group since 1992. Mr. Ng obtained a Higher Diploma in Accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in 1980. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a certified public accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined the Group in
1991 and has over 20 years of experience in the field of auditing and

accounting.

Mr. Ting Hon Yam, aged 54, has been an executive director of the
Group since 1994 and is also the managing director of Hong Kong
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing (Greater China) Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Ting joined the Group in 1983 and has over

20 years of experience in the petrochemical industry.

Mr. Wong Kam Yim, Kenny, aged 47, has been an executive director
of the Group since 2002. He is a deputy chief executive officer of the
Group. Mr. Wong graduated from University of Sheffield in United
Kingdom in 1987 with a Bachelor's Degree in Business Studies and
obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration from University
of Wales in United Kingdom in 1988. He joined the Group in 1996 and

has over 10 years of experience in marketing and management.
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BEREE
Mr. Tong Wui Tung, Ronald

Mr. Young Man Kim, Robert, aged 59, has been an executive director
of the Group since 2002. Mr. Young received a Master's degree in
Chemistry from the University of California, Berkeley in 1972 and a
MBA from the Chinese University of Hong Kong's 3-Year MBA Programme
in 1981. He has extensive experience in the petrochemical industry, and
was the Director for Hong Kong/Macau for Shell Hong Kong Limited
from 1993 to 2000. He is also a member of the Supervisory Board of
the Hong Kong Housing Society, a member of the Marketing Management
Committee of the Hong Kong Management Association, and the vice
chairman and a member of the Board of Governors of Friends of the

Earth (Charity) Limited.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tong Wui Tung, Ronald, aged 57, was elected as an independent
non-executive director of the Group since 1993 and was re-designated
as a non-executive director in 2004. Mr. Tong is a partner of the law
firm, Messrs. Cheung, Tong & Rosa, legal advisers of the Company on
Hong Kong Law which receives usual professional fees in connection
with services rendered to the Group. Mr. Tong has been practising as
a solicitor in Hong Kong for over 20 years and is also an independent

non-executive director of Country Garden Holdings Company Limited,

a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.




EERTHRAERN Directors' And Management Executives' Profiles

_|_I l";.-"‘
ol

BESEE
Mr. Wong Kong Chi

BAFHITES

BRESRE  BFEO+T AR R-AN=FEZ
EREBBYFHTES - WARFLRIETE
AEEREEREBETMASEM - BEXLE
REBEEBBMARTER T2 UR-AI=F
Bk BERABEZB LT ARNESSEEBY
FBITES 2B -

EXRERELE  REANT -5 —NWEtOFEX
REBEIZNR (REFEBEIARE) RAEE
EZZE0EREE - BBEETRAEHER
RERBHEEESRITRARBE=1TZF  EET
FEREE - TR —EBIRRZEZERES
EESNEASHBECTIE BRI HEMBEZMN
REERZESENITF - BBEERBR—BR
RBEREXSZFAEHARNFITESRE—F
EBELTRARNBYFHITES -

FEREE  BFEATEH —hE=ZF2XR
EEEMBT REWRBELG T BB o RIK
MELEEMETRBBBB_+EE - £YR
REE B ABRTBRIEEREE - KEA
HERtEnRERHE R85 F  EBLER
ZREER FREVEEFTEM LT AREMN
BB -

BFSEHREE
Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie

FERESE
Mr. Li Chak Man, Chuck

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kong Chi, aged 49, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Group since 1993. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified public accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong
retired in 1993 after working in the merchant banking industry for over
10 years and since then has sat on the boards of several listed companies

in Hong Kong as independent non-executive directors.

Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie, aged 61, graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in
1974. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Au-Yeung has extensive experience in management, having held
senior executive appointments in the tertiary education field and the
service industry for over 30 years. He is the treasurer of a charitable
organization which raises funds and advocates for the well-being of
children. He also serves on the governing council of two performing arts
groups. Mr. Au-Yeung is currently a non-executive director of a company
listed in the London Stock Exchange, and an independent non-executive

director of another company listed in Hong Kong.

Mr. Li Chak Man, Chuck, aged 60, graduated from Texas A&M University
with a Master Degree in Statistics in 1973. Mr. Li retired in 2004 after
working in the petrochemical industry for over 25 years with extensive
experience in logistics, procurement, management, personnel and
administration. He was a representative to Association of International
Chemical Manufacturers in the 90's to promote safety distribution of
hazardous chemicals. Mr. Li does not hold any directorship of other listed

companies.

_
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HEBELE
Mr. Zhao Chu Bang

Management Executives

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu, aged 42, joined the Group in 1987 and served
with various subsidiaries or departments of the Group. He is currently
the general manager of Yip's Ink and Chemicals (Zhongshan) Company
Limited, Yip's Ink & Chemicals (Shanghai) Company Limited and Bauhinia
Variegata Ink & Chemicals (Zhongshan) Ltd., wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Kwong obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration from The Open University of Hong Kong in 2003. He
was elected as “2006 Top Ten Outstanding Manager in China Inks
Industry” and is also the deputy director of the China Soft-Packaging

Technical Information Centre.

Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter, aged 50, joined the Group in 2004 and has
been the assistant director of the Group. He holds a Bachelor's Degree
in Mechanical Engineering from Hong Kong University and a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Li has worked in a multi-national petrochemical company for
over 20 years and has extensive experience in engineering, corporate

planning, and marketing operations.

Mr. Zhao Chu Bang, aged 45, is an experienced engineer. He joined
the Group in 1993 and has been the managing director of the Jiangmen
Handsome Chemical Development Limited since April 2005. Mr. Zhao
has over 20 years of experience in the chemical industry and has extensive
experience in the management field. He had been deputy director of
the Jiangmen Solvent Factory and director of Jiangmen Handsome

Chemical Development Limited.
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Ms. Zhu Qing Hua

Management Executives (continued)

Mr. Tse Chun Wai, Richard, aged 41, has been the financial controller
of the Group since 2005. Mr. Tse obtained a Professional Diploma in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong
Kong Polytechnic University). He also holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration, a Master Degree in Science (Information Systems
Management) and a Master Degree in Science (Investment Management)
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an
associate member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
and a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He joined the Group in 2000 and has over 10 years

of experience in the field of auditing and accounting.

Mr. Huang Guan Song, aged 53, has been the general manager of
Hang Cheung Petrochemical Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, since October 2006. He graduated from South China University
of Technology in 1982. He joined the Group in 1987 and has 20 years

of experience in the management of the petrochemical industry.

Ms. Zhu Qing Hua, aged 38, has been the general manager of Best
Lubricant Blending Limited, a wholly-subsidiary of the Group, since
January 2005. Ms. Zhu graduated from China Europe International
Business School in 2002 with a Master Degree in Business Administration.
She joined the Group in 2003 and has over 10 years of experience in

the sales and marketing management of the petrochemical industry.

_
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BERERE
Mr. Huang Guang De

Mr. Wong Man Chun, Steman, aged 39, joined the special lubricants
industry in 1990 and was the China marketing and business manager
in 1992. His duties were mainly for the China business development and
management work. In 1995, he established a company named *“Pacific
Oil & Chemical Company Limited” and has been the managing director

of the Company. Mr. Wong joined the Group in 2005.

Mr. Huang Guang De, aged 43, joined the Group in 1994, has been
the general manager of Hui Yang Da Chang Industrial Limited (now
known as Dachang Polymers (Huizhou) Ltd.) since April 2006. Mr. Huang
graduated from Department of Chemistry Zheng Zhou University in
1984, is a patent agent authorized by the State Intellectual Property
Office of the People’s Republic of China and a member of the Safety
Production Expert’s Group of Huizhou City, holds a Certificate of Senior
Management Consultant from American International Training Association,
and has completed a course in business administration and a course in
project management at Tsing Hua University. Before joining the Group,
he has worked in government departments, research institutes and

chemical factories with extensive experience in management.
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Corporate Governance Report

Statement of Compliance

The Company is committed to adopt and maintain a high standard
of corporate governance. The board of directors of the Company (the
"Board”) believes that good governance is essential to achieving the
Group's objectives of maximizing values for its employees, customers,
suppliers, business partners and shareholders, and safeguarding the

interests of them.

This report sets out the means by which the Group applies the principles
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”), as
appended to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Throughout the year ended 31st March, 2007, the Company has
complied with the Code save for the deviation from Code provision
A.2.1 on the roles of chairman and chief executive officer which should
be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.
In the opinion of the Board, the role of the chief executive officer is
equivalent to that of the managing director in the Group and Mr. Ip Chi
Shing, Tony is now acting both as the Chairman of the Board and the
Managing Director of the Company. Beginning on 1st April, 2008, the
Group will gradually implement a new group management structure
in which the role of the chairman of the Board and the role of the
chief executive officer of the Group’s management committee will be

separated and held by two individuals.

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
and oversees the businesses, strategic directions and financial
performance of the Group. The members comprising the Board provide
the Group with a diverse range of industry, financial and commercial
knowledge and experience. This combination of skills and interests
facilitates the Board in formulating its decisions and strategies and
ensures that all Directors are able to make a significant and individual

contribution to the Group.
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EEAIRE Corporate Governance Report

The Board (Continued)

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises seven executive, one non-executive
and three independent non-executive directors. Biographic details of
the Directors are set out in the section of Directors’ and Management
Executives’ Profiles on pages 34 to 41. All non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific terms

of two years, subject to re-election.

Executive Directors Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Tony
(Chairman and Managing Director)
Ms. Ip Fung Kuen
(Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Yip Tze Hin, Stephen
(Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Ng Siu Ping, George
Mr. Ting Hon Yam
Mr. Wong Kam Yim, Kenny
(Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Young Man Kim, Robert

Non-executive Director Mr. Tong Wui Tung, Ronald

Independent Mr. Wong Kong Chi

Non-executive Directors Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie

Mr. Li Chak Man, Chuck

Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Tony, is the brother of Ms. Ip Fung Kuen and Mr.
Yip Tsz Hin, Stephen. Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not

otherwise related to each other.

The Company has received annual confirmations from all three
Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of their independence
as set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. One of the Independent Non-
executive Directors possesses the appropriate professional accounting

qualifications and related financial management experience.

The Board regularly reviews its composition and membership to
ensure that it possesses the necessary skill, experience and diversity to
discharge its responsibilities effectively. Currently, the nomination and

appointment of new directors are the responsibilities of the full Board.

Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited 2006-2007 Annual Report
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The Board (Continued)

Operation of the Board

During the year ended 31st March, 2007, sixteen *regular and other

Board meetings were held by the Board. The attendance of each

Director at these meetings is shown in the table below:-

EEZSERER
Regular Board Meetings
HFERE AR E
1 Director Attended Apologise given
HITES Executive Directors:
EEREE Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Tony
(EEREFHLE) (Chairman and Managing
Director) 4 0
EEIE/NAE Ms. Ip Fung Kuen
(BIEEE) (Deputy Chairman) 4 0
EPE AL Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, Stephen
(BIEEE) (Deputy Chairman)
KRBV EE Mr. Ng Siu Ping, George
TEREE Mr. Ting Hon Yam
BEEBEE Mr. Wong Kam Yim, Kenny
(BITTB A8 %) (Deputy Chief Executive Officer) 4 0
BRM&LE Mr. Young Man Kim, Robert
FHITES ! Non-executive Director:
BEREE Mr. Tong Wui Tung, Ronald 4 0
BYFHITES : Independent Non-executive
Directors:
BESEE Mr. Wong Kong Chi
EEEBEE Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie
TERKE Mr. Li Chak Man, Chuck 0

o ARARAFESOSERT REFHEST
DAESEEHREE  HASHESHINE
BHMAEFERINEBSHE - RET2ES
SEAGEN EFETTFTHARNESSTHM
H UMEAREEINRESSERES
EXBCER

ESEHMER
Other Board Meetings
HERE TREEIRE
Attended Apologies given

12
12
12

12
12

12

12

* Four Regular board meetings are held approximately quarterly during

the year which involve the active participation, either in person or

through other electronic means of communications, by a majority

of the directors. Besides the Regular board meetings, other board

meetings are convened from time to time for the Board to approve

routine business or discuss matters that require the Board’s timely

attention.
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The Board (Continued)

Operation of the Board

The Group has adopted procedures for the Directors to seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses. New
directors are offered a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction

upon appointment.

The joint role of Finance Director and Company Secretary, held by Mr.
Ng Siu Ping, George, ensures that the Directors have ready access to
all necessary information and that all Board procedures are followed.
Mr. Ng is also responsible for offering opportunities of continuing
professional development to all Directors to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to help ensure that their contribution to the Board

remains informed and relevant.
Delegation by the Board

A formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board is maintained and

is subject to regular review. Those matters include:

o long term objectives and strategies

o preliminary announcements of results

o annual budgets

o major capital expenditure, acquisitions and disposals
. risk management policies

o connected transactions

o dividends

o appointment of new directors

o establishment of Board committees

Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited 2006-2007 Annual Report
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The Board (Continued)

Delegation of the Board

In relation to non-reserved matters, the Board has delegated its
principal executive responsibilities to the Group Management
Committee (the “GMC"), which comprises six Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Tony, Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, Stephen, Mr. Ng Siu Ping,
George, Mr. Ting Hon Yam, Mr. Wong Kam Yim, Kenny and Mr. Young
Man Kim, Robert, and four senior executives, namely, Mr. Kwong Kwok
Chiu, Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter, Mr. Zhao Chu Bang and Mr. Tse Chun Wai,
Richard. The GMC operates under a clearly defined set of Terms of
Reference and normally meets on a monthly basis. It is also responsible

for the management and day-to-day operations of the Group.

The Board also delegates certain responsibilities to the Remuneration

and Audit Committees as described below.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Remuneration Committee, which comprises one Non-executive
Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors, is chaired by
Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie and was formed in June 2005. Major

roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

o making recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior

management

o determining the remuneration packages of all Executive

Directors and senior management

ERLIRBEARLE —EEAE-ZTLFEFH
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EENSREBEB 2HMN o Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management (continued)

TMEES o HESECSZEHNALTMEIE > I The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on

EESRAEFA AR WERMEEH - the Company’s website and from the Company Secretary on request.

REBE-ZZTLE=ZA=+—HEE  HEHZEE During the year ended 31st March, 2007, the Remuneration
SETTIRERNEE SKENBEEE2H  Committee held three formal meetings and the attendance of each

EREEINMT - member at these meetings is shown in the table below:-

HERE TRERE
RE Member Attended Apologies given
BEEBEE Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie 3 0
BELLE Wong Kong Chi 3 0
FER%EE Li Chak Man, Chuck 3 0
BEREE Tong Wui Tung, Ronald 3 0
REzEeElL  FHZEE In these meetings, the Remuneration Committee:

BEUAEERTEESRSREEB2HH . reviewed the remuneration structure and policy and the levels of

SR R BUER A Z AT B Bk T remuneration paid to the Group's Executive Directors and senior
management
. BEBTESRSRERBZENEEZE . reviewed the performance targets of the Executive Directors and

senior management

. HEAEER-ZSZLFNABEHESZ . approved the share options granted to selected Directors and
EERSREEEBR THERE senior management of the Group in April 2007

EEWESBREREELRQAREMBARERM  Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by the
NHREECHRE - BE-ZTZLF=A=+—H  Company and its subsidiaries in connection with the management of
LEFEEXNFAACRASEESNEEEFATINGEH  the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The amounts paid to
TEEREMFE each Director of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2007 are

showed in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Accountability and Audit

Directors’ and Auditors’ responsibilities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group and their announcements to
shareholders and commits to the presentation of a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects. The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a

going concern.

The Auditors’ reporting responsibilities are stated in the Independent

Auditor’s Report on pages 63 to 65.

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed in November 1998 and currently
comprises one Non-executive and three Independent Non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Mr. Wong Kong Chi. Major roles and
functions of the Audit Committee include:

o review of financial information of the Group

o oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system and internal

control procedures

o monitoring of the relationship between the Group and its

external auditors

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the

Company’s website and from the Company Secretary on request.
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Accountability and Audit (Continued)

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee met three times during the year ended 31st
March, 2007 and the attendance of each member at these meetings is

shown in the table below:—

HEER HRERH
Attended Apologies given
3 0
3 0
3 0
3 0

In these meetings, the Audit Committee:

o reviewed the interim and annual results of the Group before
their approval by the Board and in doing so, the committee
focused on material deviations of the Group’s performance
from past year’s results, major areas of judgement, selection
and application of accounting policies and compliance with

regulatory requirements

o received reports from the internal audit department, discussed
material findings with the head of internal audit and approved

the internal audit plan

o discussed the audit plan with the Group’s external auditors
and assessed its independence with reference to its policies for
maintaining independence and reviewed the extent of non-audit

services provided

An audit committee meeting was held on 27th June, 2007 to review
the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31st March, 2007.
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Accountability and Audit (Continued)

Internal Control

The Board has delegated to management the responsibilities of
designing and implementing an appropriate system of internal controls
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of operations and compliance

with applicable laws and regulations.

The internal audit department was set up in 1997 to monitor
independently the implementation of the internal control procedures
and to make recommendations on the effectiveness of the internal
control system. The head of internal audit reports directly to the Finance

Director and the Audit Committee.

During the year, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Group. Following the
recommendations prepared in March 2006 by the internal task force
set up by the Board to examine the compliance of Code provision C2.1,
the Group undertook a comprehensive exercise to evaluate its internal
control systems. The exercise was divided into 2 phases. The first phase
involved the identification of the risk factors relevant to the Group, the
assessment of the potential impact of each risk factor, the examination
of the existing control procedures, and the prioritization of major risk
factors. In the second phase, selected major risk factors were further
reviewed in details and improvements in control procedures were put
forward for Board approval. Implementation of these improved control

procedures will be subject to an on-going monitoring process.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2007, the fee paid/payable to
the Group’s external auditors, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set

out as follows:

B ENEME
Fee paid/payable
FHET

HK$'000

2,530

187
420
16
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Investor Relations and Communication
with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders and establishes and maintains different communication
channels with its shareholders.The Company’s Annual General Meeting
(the “AGM") provides a valuable forum for the Board to communicate
directly with private shareholders. The Chairman of the Board attends
the AGM and arranges the chairmen of the Remuneration and Audit
Committees or, in their absence, another member of the committees
to be available to answer questions at the AGM. Separate resolutions
are proposed at general meetings on each substantially separate issue,

including the election of Directors.

The Group’s Corporate Communications Department aims to enhance
its relationships with the public and its shareholders. The department
strives to promote a positive image of the Group through news
disclosures and media communications, and active engagement
in corporate social responsibility efforts. The department is also
responsible for developing the investors by base maintaining a high
level of transparency and promoting a better understanding of the

Group to the investment community.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. After making specific enquiry, all Directors have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard set

out in the Model Code.

Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited 2006-2007 Annual Report
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31st March,

2007.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the manufacture of and trading in solvents,

coatings and lubricants.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for the
year ended 31st March, 2007 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 66 and note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively. An interim dividend of HK6.0 cents per share
and a special dividend of HK2.0 cents per share were paid to the
shareholders during the year. The directors propose a final dividend
of HK12.0 cents per share, estimated to be HK$57,797,000 and the

retention of the remaining profit in reserves.

Share Capital

Details of and movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 69 and note 39(b) to the consolidated financial statements,

respectively.
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Reserves (Continued)

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent the share
premium, special reserve and retained profits. Under the Companies
Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of
the Company is available for distribution or paying dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles
of Association and provided that immediately following the distribution
or dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, dividends can only be distributed out of the retained
profits of the Company, which amounted to HK$110,444,000 at 31st
March, 2007 (2006: HK$142,206,000) .

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
totalling approximately HK$85 million for expansion of its business.
Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st March, 2007 are

set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited 2006-2007 Annual Report

%



EEFIRE Directors’ Report

ESNBEBEN

FARBEABREAPRALERRRZESWT ¢

BITES !

EERALE (F/E)
ER\E/MA (BIEL/E)
RYHEE CGIETY
REBFRE

TERTE

EEREE (BI7TIECABZL,)
BRELE

FHITES !
EERLE
BUFBTES

BEESEE
BEERLEE
FERLE

BRARXBZAEAEHEEMA - EFHELE
RAFRERTEREENEBETZRRBF
REEREER  HENSEEREE - MEKHT
FESABEERT - AR ZBUFYTESS
EREEZERME  TREEBTZRREFRE
BRETE  HEREEBEADME ZBE -
REFFPTESEEREEEBIFNITES
HEESAEERBSEDCECEADIME &
2 o

Directors and Service Contracts

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Tony (Chairman)
Ms. Ip Fung Kuen (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, Stephen (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Ng Siu Ping, George

Mr. Ting Hon Yam

Mr. Wong Kam Yim, Kenny (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Young Man Kim, Robert

Non-executive director:

Mr. Tong Wui Tung, Ronald

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wong Kong Chi
Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie
Mr. Li Chak Man, Chuck

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, Stephen, Mr. Ng Siu Ping, George and
Mr. Ting Hon Yam will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election as directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. All remaining directors will continue
in office. The appointment of the independent non-executive director,
Mr. Li Chak Man, Chuck, will also terminate at the conclusion of
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offers
himself for appointment for a specific term of two years. In the last
year, the non-executive director, Mr. Tong Wui Tung, Ronald and the
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Wong Kong Chi and Mr.
Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie were appointed for a specific term of two

years.

—
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Directors and Service Contracts (continued)

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).

The non-executive and independent non-executive directors’ fees are

determined by the Board of Directors.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Securities

As at 31st March, 2007, the interests of the directors and their
respective associates in the shares of the Company (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which are
required (a) to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of the Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers to be notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange were as follows:—

Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited 2006-2007 Annual Report
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EENESTBAENESEZE Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests

wmRARE @ and Short Positions in Securities (continued)
e Long positions
2EITRA
PA=E: N
Percentage
of the issued
B AR RIERER share capital
BENR Personal Family mE of the
Name of Director Interests Interests Total Company
BEEREE 189,423,932 - 189,423,932 39.33%
Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Tony
ERE/AE 59,000,000 - 59,000,000 12.25%
Ms. Ip Fung Kuen
BEreis 36,140,000 20,000,000 (a) 56,140,000 11.66%
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, Stephen
RIBFKE 1,632,000 50,000 (b) 1,682,000 0.35%
Mr. Ng Siu Ping, George
TEREE 150,000 - 150,000 0.03%
Mr.Ting Hon Yam
ko cpied 208,000 - 208,000 0.04%
Mr. Wong Kam Yim, Kenny
BRE&LE 1,902,000 - 1,902,000 0.39%
Mr. Young Man Kim, Robert
EEREE - 500,000 (c) 500,000 0.10%
Mr. Tong Wui Tung, Ronald
BELAE - 100,000 (d) 100,000 0.02%
Mr. Wong Kong Chi
B EBEE - - - _
Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie
TERKE 150,000 (e) - (e) 150,000 0.03%

Mr. Li Chak Man, Chuck

FIEE Notes:

(@ HEBRNHEFHAEZESFEREZLE (@ These shares are held by Madam Tso Ka Lai, the wife of Mr. Yip Tsz
B Hin, Stephen.

b) HEBRNHRBFLEEZESFESBFZLIE  (b) These shares are held by Madam Siu Oi Li, Maicy, the wife of Mr. Ng
B Siu Ping, George.

(0 HEBRNHBEERLEZEZFEABWLLZEIE () These shares are held by Madam Lau Mui Sum, the wife of Mr. Tong
B Wui Tung, Ronald.

d) HEBNHEESZLXEZEZFENELZLIE  (d) These shares are held by Madam Jim Siu Wai, the wife of Mr. Wong
B Kong Chi.

(e) HEBRMEZTZRAEZEFEMEELLIHRE ()  These shares are jointly held with Madam Cheng Yee Ha, the wife of
f= 2= Mr. Li Chak Man, Chuck.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Securities (continued)

Details of the share options held by the directors under the Company’s
existing share option scheme are shown in the next section “Share

Options”.

Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Tony, Ms. Ip Fung Kuen, Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, Stephen and
Madam Liang Bih Yu, the wife of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Tony, each holds one
non-voting deferred share of Yip's H.C. (Holding) Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above and certain nominee shares in
subsidiaries held by directors in trust for the Company or its subsidiaries,
at 31st March, 2007, none of the directors, chief executive nor their
associates held any interests or short positions in the securities of the

Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO.

Share Options

On 3rd September, 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Existing Scheme”) which will expire on 2nd September, 2012 in
order to comply with the terms of Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. Particulars of the
Existing Scheme are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited 2006-2007 Annual Report
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Eﬁﬂi*g(@) Share Options (Continued)

FR - BEAQTEEFEACHETETESHE  During the year, movements in the number of options which have
HESBREZSEFENOT @ — been granted to certain directors and employees under the Company’s

Existing Scheme are as follows :-

BRESE
Number of share options
NIBERE R-EELE
mA—H ERE =A=t+-A
s RATE e 5 RAT
TEE Outstanding Exercised Outstanding
R A Exercise at during at
Date of Grant Price 1.4.2006 the year 31.3.2007
BT
HK$
g
Directors
RIBYEE —EZ-F+-A+H0A 1.190 500,000 - 500,000
Mr. Ng Siu Ping, George 14th November, 2002
—ETMFERA+TEAR 1.590 300,000 - 300,000
17th May, 2004
—ZTRE+AZTMA 2.004 200,000 - 200,000
24th October, 2005
TEREE —TZ-F+-A+@mA 1.190 500,000 - 500,000
Mr. Ting Hon Yam 14th November, 2002
“ZZNFREA+TLEA 1.590 150,000 150,000 -
17th May, 2004
—EERFE+HA=+MNA 2.004 200,000 - 200,000
24th October, 2005
BEeREE —ZTZ-F+-A+mA 1.190 500,000 - 500,000
Mr. Wong Kam Yim, Kenny 14th November, 2002
—ZTMEHEA/++A 1.590 300,000 - 300,000
17th May, 2004
—2ERFTAZTOA 2.004 200,000 - 200,000
24th October, 2005
BREEE —ETRETAZTHEA 2.004 200,000 200,000 =
Mr. Young Man Kim, Robert 24th October, 2005
3,050,000 350,000 2,700,000
ET —EE-E+—-A+WmA 1.190 400,000 300,000 100,000
Employees 14th November, 2002
—ZENFHEATtA 1.590 2,200,000 925,000 1,275,000
17th May, 2004
—ZETMEFTANAE 1.690 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
8th October, 2004
—ETRE+AZTWMA 2.004 7,074,000 3,510,000 3,564,000
24th October, 2005
12,674,000 4,735,000 7,939,000

15,724,000 5,085,000 10,639,000
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Share Options (Continued)

No share option was granted to directors or employees during the
year. Weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised was

HK$3.063.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, or their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during the

year.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31st March, 2007, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors, the Company
has not been notified of any interests representing 5% or more of the

Company’s issued share capital as at 31st March, 2007.

Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited 2006-2007 Annual Report
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Major Suppliers and Customers

During the year, the aggregate purchases and sales attributable to the

Group’s five largest suppliers and customers were both less than 30%.

Post Balance Sheet Event

Details of post balance sheet event are set out in note 37 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Corporate Governance

Report on the Company’s corporate governance are set out in

“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 42 to 51.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at 31st March, 2007 and the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25%
of the Company’s total issued shares capital as required under the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$1,179,000.

Connected Transactions and Directors’
Interests in Contracts

On 10th April, 2006, Hong Kong Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing
(Greater China) Company Limited (“Greater China”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement
with Mr. Wang Jian (“Mr. Wang"), a director of Greater China, Yip's
Chemical (Shanghai) Co., Limited and Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing
(Jilin) Co., Ltd., subsidiaries of the Company and being a minority
shareholder of Bauhinia Paints Limited (“BPL"), a then 93.5% owned
subsidiary of the Company, to acquire from Mr. Wang the remaining
6.5% equity interest of BPL, at a consideration of RMB15 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$14,496,000).

During the year, the Group paid rent of HK$720,000, HK$600,000
and HK$180,000 to Goldex Investments Limited, Galsheer Investments
Limited and Microphase Technology Company Limited respectively in
which Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Tony, Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, Stephen and Mr. Ng Siu
Ping, George, the directors of the Company, have beneficial interests

respectively.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata

basis to listing shareholders.

Auditors

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-

appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Ip Chi Shing, Tony

Chairman

Hong Kong, 3rd July, 2007

—
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yip's
Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) on pages 66 to 132, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March, 2007, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

ERLIRBEARLE —EEAE-ZTLFEFH
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2007 and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

3rd July, 2007
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w CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st March, 2007

—2EtHE =RERE
2007 2006
g3 FHET FHBT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EE S Turnover 7 3,913,835 3,329,670
SHERAK Cost of sales (3,121,237) (2,667,211)
e Gross profit 792,598 662,459
HAGWA Other income 26,420 16,240
HERKIHER Selling and distribution expenses (106,407) (98,611)
THEA Administrative expenses (364,660) (340,135)
LRESEF Profit from operations 8 347,951 239,953
MNEER Interest expense 10 (26,251) (21,538)
BB AR Profit before taxation 321,700 218,415
BiA Taxation 11 (51,982) (21,681)
AR EAF| Profit for the year 269,718 196,734
FEAG R A: Attributable to:

VNG Equity holders of the Company 223,636 168,389
DHBRRER Minority interests 46,082 28,345
269,718 196,734

BRER Earnings per share 13
- 82K - Basic 46.6 lli cents 35.5 1ili cents
- — Diluted 46.1 4 cents 35.2 fily cents
ERCIEEERIE —SERE-ZSLFEFR
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RITEE

- —FREH
RITIEX

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Goodwill
Intangible asset
Available-for-sale investment

Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Deferred taxation assets

Other non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade debtors
Other debtors and prepayments
Prepaid lease payments
Derivative financial instruments
Short-term bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Creditors and accrued charges
Taxation payable

Obligations under a finance lease
—amount due within one year

Bank borrowings
— amount due within one year

Bank overdrafts

MyaE

Notes

14
15
16
17
18

28
19

20
21
22
15
23

24

25

26

27

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 31st March, 2007

S S
2007 2006
FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
516,368 453,693
75,728 74,669
30,491 19,231
1,000 2,000
17,653 16,841
17,774 -
- 691
4,600 4,600
663,614 571,725
417,767 341,742
751,288 610,849
99,762 85,825
2,212 2,280
4 2
94,481 26,804
234,077 237,097
1,599,591 1,304,599
487,226 359,403
56,163 18,388
= 33
428,508 347,390
93 210
971,990 725,424

Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited 2006-2007 Annual Report
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FEEEEBR CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

—E2ELF ZEERF
2007 2006
g3 FHET FHBT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REBEEFRE Net current assets 627,601 579,175
BEERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 1,291,215 1,150,900
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
IRITIEE Bank borrowings
— —F&ZH — amount due after one year 27 55,636 165,885
EERIBEE Deferred taxation liabilities 28 1,892 1,794
57,528 167,679
1,233,687 983,221
BAREE Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 29 48,164 47,656
e Reserves 1,055,644 846,295
AATRREGER Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company 1,103,808 893,951
LEBRRES Minority interests 129,879 89,270
1,233,687 983,221

HEEFINEZAEUEREER-ZTZ L
FLA-RAEEESHAERBETE  YHUT
KRBT

EF EZE
BEEK EREB

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 132 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 3rd July,

2007 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director Director

Ip Chi Shing, Tony Ip Fung Kuen

—
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;_;ijfﬁ ;ﬁfﬁ w  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31st March, 2007

BEMAIRR 2 BR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BhE FUHK BAEE
B B fife Zit SHRR
BE  RiEE Share Non- EXRGE EERE  Copial ikl i
Share Share option distributable ~ Translation legal redemption  Retained &5 Minority &if
Capital ~ premium reserve Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve profits Total  Interests Total

TEn  TEn  TER  TER  TEr  TEr  TEn TR TER  TER  TiEn
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
RZZZREMA-A At st Aprl, 2005 471293 228602 - 3915 12,760 525 5038 461621 759774 55,35 815,129

ITEEBUNHEAT Exchange differences arising on
ZHBHEREL Y trandlation of foreign operations

EREE recognised directly in equity - - - - 18,142 - - - 18,142 1 19,913
RERHF Profit for the year - - - - - - - 168389 168389 28345 196734
REERIMALE  Total recognised income for the year - - - - 184 - - 168389 186531 30116 216647
et Sub-total 47293 228,622 - 3915 30,902 525 5038 630,010 946,305 85471 1,031,776
REBREETHER  Sharesissued at premium upon

BIRRZEE exercise of share options 363 5,505 (110) - - - - - 5758 - 5758
BEIURMBEES  Recognition of equity-settled

ESTT share-based payment - - 1,258 - - - - - 1258 - 1258
WEARHEREY  Capital contribution from minority

EREA shareholders of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 1450 14502
BIRTIERE Transfer tolegal reserve - - - - - 49 - (49) - - -
EfRE Divicends paid - - - - - - - (59370)  (59,370) - (59,370)
EAMBATHE  Dividends paid to minority

RERS shareholders of subsiciaries - - - - - - - - - (10703 (10,703)
RZZERE At 315t March, 2006

ZE=t-H 4765 234,127 1,148 3915 30,902 574 5038 570,591 893,951 89270 983221

FEEBUMIBAT bichange diferences arsing on
ZBBHEBELEZ  trandation of foreign operations

ERZR recognised directly in equity - - - - 58417 - - - 58417 6015 64432
REEAR Profitfor the year - - - - - - - B36% B6% 4608 269718
REERIMALE  Total recognised income for the year - - - - 58417 - - 363 28,05 52097 334,150
NGt Sub-total 47656 234127 1,148 3915 89,319 574 5038 794227 1176004 141367 1317371
RERBETERRT Share issued at premium upon

Kz EE exercise of share options 508 9,534 (541) - - - - - 9,501 - 9,501
WEEIME Acquisition of additional interests

NAER in subsidlaries - - - - - - - - - 323 B
BIRTIERE Transfer tolegal reserve - - - - - 547 - (547) - -
2fRE Divicends paid - - - - - - - (81,697)  (81,697) - (81,697)
EAMBATHE  Dividends paid to minority

RERS shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (8215 (8219
ZERLE At 31st March, 2007

ZE=t-H 48164 243,661 607 3915 89,319 11 5038 711983 1103808 129879 10233687

FADRFEEEARUTEEZES ()L The non-distributable reserve represents funds used to (i) make up prior
AEEFES()VBREEEE - year losses or (i) expand production operations.

TEBARAFOIRZEEREREBUINMNIEL  The legal reserve is non-distributable and represents the transfer
ARET BT Mt B2 AT ERBA ZIEF o of profits of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong pursuant to the legal

requirements in the relevant place of registration.
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Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for :
Amortisation of intangible asset
Release of prepaid lease payments

Equity-settled share based
payment expense

Depreciation and amortisation of
property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss of property, plant
and equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
of freehold land

Change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments

Interest expense

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Dividend income from
available-for-sale investment

Interest income

Gain on disposal of
a subsidiary

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
on inter-company balances
Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade debtors
Increase in other debtors and prepayments
Increase (decrease) in creditors
and accrued charges
Net cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Enterprise Income Tax in
Mainland China paid

Net cash from operating
activities

MyaE

Notes

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31st March, 2007

—TTtF —EER
2007 2006
FHExT FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000
321,700 218,415
1,000 1,000
2,172 2,270
= 1,258
39,481 38,965
191 1,571
(952) -
() (2)
26,251 21,538
806 1,542
(1,240) -
(5,375) (1,713)
(487) -
6,041 (1,493)
389,586 283,351
(61,768) (41,436)
(106,483) (45,049)
(4,881) (3,264)
81,977 (26,830)
298,431 166,772
(4,625) (543)
(8,793) (14,807)
285,013 151,422

ERLIRBEARLE —EEAE-ZTLFEFH



REEXBREEZRER
BEWE  BERRE
BEMXTE

WS EBZRSNHY I 1 BB AR

BN Tt E 2 R

WE—EHNBEAR
HRFABAZRE

SRFIE

HEME - BER
R Z TR

AEHERER
REWA
HE—REMEAT
PRI 2 FRIE
B BIRIRRITIE
HEFEA T i S TR
ZRE
BEUHHERE
REXBEEZ
FREXH
BEEBFEEZRER
SBRITER
BT PRSFIE
BERITER
XAIRE
XAFR
XMBARZ
DEBRBRE
EEREHE

LERRZERER

BMEXBAELEZ
FRE () KA
FRERREEREM

FAF2RER
REEH

EXRSBFEEZHE
FRECRERREEH

RERREEEON
BHRITER
RITHEBREE
RITEX

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries

Payment for prepaid lease payments

Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash
and cash equivalents acquired

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Dividend received from
available-for-sale investment

Proceeds from disposal
of a subsidiary

Decrease in pledged bank deposits

Proceeds from disposal of
prepaid lease payments

Purchase of available-for-sale investment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Bank loans raised

Shares issued for cash
Repayment of bank loans
Dividends paid

Interest paid

Dividends paid to minority shareholders
of subsidiaries

Repayment of obligations under
a finance lease

Capital contribution from minority
shareholders

Net cash (used in) from

financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Short-term bank deposits
Bank balances and cash
Bank overdrafts

FAIRLMEBR Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents

—ETLF —ETRF

2007 2006

FEE FET FHT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(77,146) (89,018)

(17,774) -

(14,533) -

(811) -

35 9,816 -
5,375 1,713

2,194 3,795

1,240 -

36 1,130 -
= 3,914

= 676
= (16,526)
(90,509) (95,446)

528,652 385,991

9,501 5,758
(560,360) (281,970)
(81,697) (59,370)
(26,251) (21,538)
(8,215) (10,703)
(33) (56)

= 14,502

(138,403) 32,614

56,101 88,590

263,691 172,001

8,673 3,100

328,465 263,691

94,481 26,804

234,077 237,097
(93) (210)

328,465 263,691

Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited 2006-2007 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st March, 2007

General

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
with its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are

disclosed in the corporate information to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars while the functional currency of the Company is
Renminbi (“RMB"). The reason for selecting Hong Kong dollars
as its presentation currency because the Company is a public
company with the shares listed on the Stock Exchange, where

most of its investors are located in Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the manufacture of and trading in

solvents, coatings and lubricants.

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS"s)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
a number of new HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"s), amendments of HKAS (“Amendment”s), revisions
of HKAS (“Revised”) and Interpretations (“INT"s) (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") which
are either effective for the accounting periods beginning on
or after 1st December, 2005, 1st January, 2006, or 1st March,
2006. The adoption of the new HKFRSs has no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or prior
accounting years have been prepared and presented. Accordingly,

no prior period adjustment has been required.

—

ERLIRBEARLE —EEAE-ZTLFEFH
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A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("H KFRS"S) (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new standards,
amendment, revision and interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective. The directors of the Company anticipate
the application of these new standards, amendment, revision and
interpretations will have no material impact on the results and the

financial position of the Group.

EBETER BAREBE' HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital disclosures!
55195 (15:T)

BBETTER ERER’ HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs?
EPELACSEHD)

BB HRELER SRIE : HE' HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures!
F7%H

BBUHRELEL mERE’ HKFRS 8 Operating segments?
E8%

&5 (B e R BRNBREER HK(IFRIC)* - INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 23
REZEY) E2EvEE’
REZSH

&5 (BB BRE BREEZITETIA" HK(IFRIC) - INT 9 Reassessment of embedded derivatives®
REZEY)
REZR

B8 (BRI RE B E R HK(FRIC) - INT 10 Interim financial reporting and impairments
REZEE) RE®
REE 105

&% (AR BHRE EBMBREERE HK(FRIC) - INT 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share
REZEY) 2 -KERER transactionss
REENR BHR5°

&% (BRI BERE by e HK(FRIC) - INT 12 Service concession arrangements’
REZEY)
REZNE

TRIERLE - AR EGRRZ FERRER

TNF—A-RRERRAGZFEREEN
TRERA-ARERRARZ FEHHEN

CRZBTRENA-BR AR 2 FERRER

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2007.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st May, 2006.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June, 2006.

SRCEBTNFE+— A B E &R FEHREN
SR-_FTLF=-A—-BREARRARZ FEREER
TRZZEN\F-A-BRERFERZ FEBEAER

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st November, 2006.
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March, 2007.

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2008.

*IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting Interpretations

Committee.

Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited 2006-2007 Annual Report

V%



A B SR &5 [M15E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEETHBE

RGEEMBRERBERSERFR 5T
SRMIARKRIN ZEERIARIAE
BE BERBETXEESHBESR

REEMBHREREE BTN
Mz BB BREENRR - 1O Kz
SUBBRERETEBMEREMERL
AEF L HRAREBLATRGIAEEZ
BEAWE -

3t

BEE

}

FEMBRERBEAQRARAD AR Z

HE (HNBAR) 2BBHE - EXALQH
BRENEE—EER M BREEBE

Bt e R D - BISRIZHIE -

FRBARHEHNBLARXATDRABA
ZEREHRARIFEHEZERAMIL
(BERAE)FFARESWERA

ERER AEESEHNBARMBERE
EHAR  BEESHBENAEEE
REFRASFBE B

WM BN RREIMES Y T EHIRHES
B TEREBMBREERE IR
a6 (EBUBREERE 3N 2%
BffzEE - WERABHZMBLARZ
BENREEZREEEISEHE -

REBAFERABZRS &7 A
BRI ERRGEIRE K -

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating

policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,

as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of additional interests of subsidiaries that do not result
in a change in control do not fall within the definition of business
combination under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” (“HKFRS
3"). The excess of the cost of acquisition over the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities of the subsidiary is recognised as

goodwill.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated on consolidation.

—
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EBEH

WEHMEARRABESTREEALR-
WBRAERREBIRTZERE  FE
ERAEZEE  URKAEBBERHEK
BIMEBRTRATIAEZAABREE 3
MEBE G EZEE ZEMRAGE - 7
& HKFRS 3 R4 2 W IIB S 2 AT Bl
EE AERIAREE YUEEBEZA
SAEHERE ©

ARBEMEECEHERAREE  OHR
A (BB S H A BAAEEfE2E
BRZABNEE BERIAREBZL
REFE2ER) TR - MREMFMLE
FEBREERVEBELT2IRNEE  B8F
RRRBEZAARBEFEZEESNER
BHRA - BHE D AERNMERATER o

DERRRFWES 2 BEN PR BIR
RREBRAEE BERIREE2ZLF
EFHEFGLEPIETE -

A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those
interests at the date of the original business combination and
the minority's share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the
minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against
the interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional

investment to cover the losses.
Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet
the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 are recognised at

their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the

assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited 2006-2007 Annual Report
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A B SR &5 [M15E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FESTHBR®
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BRI -
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1st January, 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for which the
agreement date is before 1st January, 2005 represents the excess
of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant subsidiary at

the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill, the Group has discontinued
amortisation from 1st April, 2005 onwards, and such goodwill
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the cash generating unit to which the goodwill

relates may be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after 1st January, 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for which the
agreement date is on or after 1st January, 2005 represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the relevant subsidiary, at the date of acquisition.
Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary is

presented separately in the balance sheet.

—
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A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for

goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the

amount of profit or loss on disposal.
Goodwill arising on acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary

Goodwill arising on acquisition of additional interests in a
subsidiary represents the excess of the cost of acquisition of the
additional interests over the book value of the net assets of the

subsidiary attributable to the additional interests acquired.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their

estimated residual values, using the straight line method.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,

where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or for
its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost
less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress
is classified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended

use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in the consolidated income statement in the

year in which the item is derecognised.
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A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leasehold land and buildings under development for

future owner — occupied purpose

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of
development for production or administrative purposes, the
leasehold land component is classified as a prepaid lease payment
and amortised over a straight line basis over the lease term.
During the construction period, the amortisation charge provided
for the leasehold land is included as part of costs of buildings
under construction. Buildings under construction are carried
at cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of
buildings commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary for them to be

capable of operating in the manner intended by management).
Intangible asset

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost less identified
impairment loss. The cost is amortised on a straight line basis over

their estimated economic useful life of five years.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the

consolidated income statement when the asset is derecognised.
Impairment (other than goodwiill)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised as expense immediately.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment (other than goodwiill) (continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

—
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A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in respect of

each category of financial assets are set out below.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade debtors, other
debtors, short-term bank deposits and bank balances) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are

either designated or not classified as any of the other categories.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
they are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses
at each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition.
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will

not reverse in subsequent periods.
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities

and equity instruments are set out below.

—
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A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially measured
at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or
redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the
borrowings in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for

borrowing costs.
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including creditors are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded

at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are deemed as held for trading
financial assets or financial liabilities, which are initially recognised
at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance
sheet date. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial

instruments are recognised in profit or loss as they arise.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly

in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss.
Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense

on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
directly to profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance

with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense

over the lease term on a straight line basis.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net

of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title

has been passed.
Storage income is recognised when storage services are provided.

Interest income from financial assets is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the re-translation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the re-translation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange

differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate
component of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

the foreign operation is disposed of.
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A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1st April, 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising

are recognised in the translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisitions of
foreign operations prior to 1st April, 2005 are treated as non-
monetary foreign currency items of the acquirer and reported
using the historical exchange rate prevailing at the date of the

acquisition.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred taxation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes income statement items that are never taxable
or deductible. Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

balance sheet date.

Deferred taxation is recognised on differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred taxation liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred taxation assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred taxation is charged or credited to consolidated
income statement, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred taxation is

also dealt with in equity.

—
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A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are charged as
expenses when employees have rendered services entitling them

to the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Share options granted and vested before 1st April, 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet until such time as
the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the
consolidated income statement in respect of the value of options
granted in that year. Upon the exercise of the share options, the
resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of
the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the shares is
recorded by the Company as share premium. Options which lapse
or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the

register of outstanding options.

Share options granted and vested after 1st April, 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the share options
granted vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in share

option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in

share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited 2006-2007 Annual Report
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REABBINETZHEREBF 2
2 SNE & FIR IR ARG FR AR o

REBCDERRME QYR EID I
R °

4,

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. As at 31st March, 2007, the carrying
amount of goodwill is HK$30,491,000. Details of the recoverable

amount calculation are disclosed in note 16.

Financial Instruments

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade debtors,
other debtors, available-for-sale investment, short-term bank
deposits, bank balances, creditors and bank borrowings. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
Market risk
(i)  Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China with most
of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. RMB
is not freely convertible into other foreign currencies and
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated

by the government of Mainland China.

The Group has also used forward contracts to reduce some

of the foreign currency exposures.

—
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A B R &5 [15E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. Financial Instruments (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest-rate risk relates primarily to
variable-rate short-term bank deposits, balances with banks
and bank borrowings. The Group currently does not have
a policy on cash flow hedges of interest rate risk. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the

need arise.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
on obligation by counterparties is the carrying amounts of those
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated

balance sheet.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade debtors, the
management of the Group monitors procedures to ensure that
follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the management of the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider

that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and

customers.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the majority of
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and state-owned banks with

good reputation.

Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited 2006-2007 Annual Report
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A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. XBRMESE

(a) %B2E

REER/E - XEEBAKEB DR
=EBER - BRE - 2R REE
e AEENRZEXBEIHRATE

EEEBNT ¢

BE - REREEARBNAE
Em

2R - BEREERNRAR
Em

BEh - RENEEEBRMER

() AEEZEXBPREBREY

SEOT
BZE-SZtHE Year ended 31st March,
ZAStT-HLEE 2007
PEEER Segment revenue
HIMEE External sales
PEBHE Inter-segment sales
B Total
E+ Results
PEEE Segment result
FEWA Interest income
AABEEER Unallocated corporate expenses
| Profit from operations
FEEH Interest expense
BB AR Profit before taxation
BiE Taxation
REEHF Profit for the year
EBB 2 HERS TIRA T WERRAE
I o

6. Business and Geographical Segments

(a) Business segments
For management purposes, the Group’s operations are
currently classified under three business divisions, namely
solvents, coatings and lubricants. These divisions are the
basis on which the Group reports its primary segment
information.
Principal activities are as follows:
Solvents  —  manufacture of and trading in solvents
and related products
Coatings - manufacture of and trading in coatings
and related products
Lubricants - manufacture of and trading in lubricants
products
() An analysis of the Group’s turnover and results by
business segments is as follows:
BE 2R bibep Hity R5HEH o)
Solvents Coatings  Lubricants Others  Elimination Consolidated
FRT FET FET TET TR TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,194,656 1,398,708 205,085 115,386 = 3,913,835
46,595 44,166 439 5,341 (96,541) =
2,241,251 1,442,874 205,524 120,727 (96,541) 3,913,835
252,324 88,501 (6,384) 13,952 11 348,504
- 5,375
(5,928)
347,951
(26,251)
321,700
(51,982)
269,718

Inter-segment sales are charged at the similar terms as outsiders.

—
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A B ER &5 [15E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. (¥R ESFE#) 6. Business and Geographical Segments

(continued)

(a) ¥B2E(#E

(a) Business segments (continued)
(h AEEzEEERESREYK (i)  An analysis of the Group’s turnover and results by
DT () business segments is as follows: (continued)
RE 7R g Hity R HEH o)
Solvents Coatings  Lubricants Others  Elimination Consolidated
FER FER TER Tix TEx TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-STAE Year ended 31st March,
ZAZt+-HLEFE 2006
PEEER Segment revenue
HIOMEE External sales 1,902,480 1,149,882 219,058 58,250 - 3329670
DEEHE Inter-segment sales 71,101 46,152 256 5,773 (123,282) -
a5 Total 1,973,581 1,196,034 219,314 64,023 (123,282) 3,329,670
£S5 Results
PEEE Segment result 157,262 80,568 (296) 5,736 (260) 243,010
FEWA Interest income 1,713
AOBEEER Unallocated corporate expenses (4,770)
R Profit from operations 239,953
FEER Interest expense (21,538)
BRBLADER Profit before taxation 218,415
g Taxation (21,681)
REEHF Profit for the year 196,734

EBRE 2 HERS TIRAT IR
FRARAT

Inter-segment sales are charged at the similar terms as

outsiders.
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6. EXRMESE =)

(a) ¥BHE|(E)

6. Business and Geographical Segments

(continued)

(a)

Business segments (continued)

—

(i HiphER (i) Other information
&5
R 2 R Hfs  Corporate =T
Solvents Coatings  Lubricants Others level Consolidated
THET TiERx TR TR THER TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-EELE Year ended 31st March,
ZAZT-HLEFE 2007
ERMRE Capital additions 14,136 56,578 12,671 - 1,269 84,654
¥ BERRME2  Depreciation and amortisation
WEREH of property, plant and
equipment 12,018 22,517 3,278 54 1,614 39,481
BAHE#RH Release of prepaid lease payments 345 1,492 - - 335 2172
W% BERREZ  Impairment loss (reversal of
A (B £ impairment loss) in respect of
property, plant and equipment 14 (775) - - - (761)
B EEHH Amortisation of intangible asset - 1,000 - - = 1,000
HENE  BER Loss on disposal of property,
R EE plant and equipment 129 447 228 - 2 806
%5
BE 2 B Hfh  Corporate o)
Solvents Coatings  Lubricants Others level Consolidated
TER TR TR TET THET TERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ_ZTXE Year ended 31st March,
=A=+—-HLEFE 2006
EAMARE Capital additions 18,234 65,879 3,675 7 1,223 89,018
¥ - MER®RME2  Depreciation and amortisation of
TEREH property, plant and equipment 11,017 22,814 2,788 104 2,282 38,965
BHREHH Release of prepaid lease payments 411 1,523 - - 336 2,270
ME - BMERRMEZ  Impairment loss in respect of
REERE property, plant and equipment 35 1,536 - - - 1,571
B EERE Amortisation of intangible asset - 1,000 - - - 1,000
HENE  BER Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
REZE (B) plant and equipment 390 1,205 (252) - 199 1,542
ERCIEEERAT —TESAE-_STLFEFR
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6. (¥R ESFE#) 6. Business and Geographical Segments

(continued)
(a) ¥¥98E (&) (a) Business segments (continued)
(iy AEEREBIE2EEAR (i) An analysis of the Group’s balance sheet by business
DMWMT : segments is as follows:
BB Py ] B Hit o)
Solvents Coatings Lubricants Others  Consolidated
THERT FiEx TR FTART T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZELHE At 31st March,
=H=+-H 2007
& Assets
DEEE Segment assets 740,881 960,247 177,235 22,051 1,900,414
KROMEBEE Unallocated corporate assets 362,791
GEBEE Consolidated total assets 2,263,205
=t Liabilities
PEERE Segment liabilities 248,360 162,638 48,176 12,843 472,017
3REEN Taxation payable 56,163
EERIEER Deferred taxation liabilities 1,892
KOMEEEE Unallocated corporate liabilities 499,446
mEBEeRE Consolidated total liabilities 1,029,518
BB ey ) pEsbE g Hit o)
Solvents Coatings Lubricants Others  Consolidated
FEr FiEx TR FTHERT FiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N-BEXRE At 31st March,
=A=t+—-H 2006
EE Assets
DEEE Segment assets 601,888 782,468 163,967 29,437 1,577,760
EEFRIBEE Deferred taxation assets 691
KROMEBEE Unallocated corporate assets 297,873
REREE Consolidated total assets 1,876,324
= Liabilities
PEEE Segment liabilities 161,358 123,325 41,492 22,160 348,335
BT Taxation payable 18,388
EESIEEE Deferred taxation liabilities 1,794
KOMEEEE Unallocated corporate liabilities 524,586
neBas Consolidated total liabilities 893,103
(b) HESE (b) Geographical segments

HAAREBBRAE 0% 2 EHEREE
BRGRE PEIKRRE - MAEEAED
HEERNTEKRE  WEBEFS
EEE - REHRNEEMEDN -

As over 90% of the Group’s turnover and trading results are

derived from Mainland China and the assets are substantially

located in Mainland China, an analysis of the consolidated

turnover, trading results by geographical market and assets

by geographical location is not presented.
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7. EXEE 7. Turnover
SEERFEEERE 2WAOT ¢ An analysis of the Group’s turnover is as follows:
2007 2006
FEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEER Sales of goods 3,905,836 3,317,765
BERERA Storage income 7,999 11,905
3,913,835 3,329,670
Y 8. Profit from Operations
8. K& RF| P
—EELF —EEREF
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RERFISHBRTH Profit from operations has been arrived at
BIE after charging:
B EEBH Amortisation of intangible asset

GTATTBRERR) (included in administrative expenses) 1,000 1,000
Gl Auditors’ remuneration 2,972 2,549
NE - BERREZ Depreciation and amortisation of property,

TEREH plant and equipment 39,481 38,965
NSRS HE Release of prepaid lease payments 2,172 2,270
M- BERREZ Impairment loss of property, plant and

REEE (FT AT equipment (included in administrative

BRRA) (KT 14) expenses) (Note 14) 191 1,571
HEME  MEREE Loss on disposal of property, plant

28 and equipment 806 1,542
BRIFEL R M SR i 2 Operating lease payments in respect

EEROTAFIE of storage tanks and ancillary facilities 5,143 6,870
WECEEBNTNIFIE  Operating lease payments in respect of rented premises 10,443 9,365
BINANERES Staff costs, including directors’

B < (FfEE9) remuneration (Note 9) 282,327 253,233

WK ATIIEE : and after crediting:
AMHHERERE ZINE  Dividend income from available-for-sale investment 1,240 -
HE—-REKEB AT ZEF  Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 487 _
FEUWA Interest Income 5,375 1,713
BRIFEL I M SR i 2 Rental income in respect of storage tanks

HELWA and ancillary facilities 6,395 9,411
Bk A ERE L2 Reversal of impairment loss of

EEZER (MEE14) freehold land (Note 14) 952 —
Fff5 Note:

FTABIRAZERSEHRMOT ¢ Pension contributions included in staff costs are as follows:
—ETLF TEERE
2007 2006
FBT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AEBEEHBEHR Pension contributions to the

s8I Z MR Group’s defined contribution schemes 4,119 4,022

R IRARER Less: Forfeited contributions (14) (256)
4,105 3,766

96
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9. EEMEREEME 9. Directors’ Remuneration and
Employees’ Emoluments
ENREFFNRBR(ZEERE 11 R)E The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 11 ( 2006:11)
EzMenT : directors were as follows:
5 EER ETH 0 RBF TE MR BRR  EER  ERS  EREM IR 48
[} Yip Ng Wong Young Tong Au-Yeung li
ChiShing, I TzHin,  SuPig, Ting  KamYim,  ManKim, ~ WuiTung, Wong ~ TsanPong,  Chak Man,
Tooy fungKuen  Stephen  George  HonYam Kenny Robert ~ Ronald ~ Kong Chi Daie Chuck Total
THn TR TR TEr  TEn TEm THn TR TR TEr TEn TEn
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
TERLE 2007
EELE fees 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 30 500 200 200 4020
Aftie Other emoluments
EORAVER  Sariesand other benefit 3m 1230 238 1457 154 2064 1651 - - - - 134
RifERE Retrement beneft scheme contrbutions 166 106 13 113 114 13 i - - - - 829
ik Total emoluments 3738 1,736 2918 1970 2,038 25% ALl 300 500 200 200 18333
ZEERE 2006
EELE fees 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 30 500 200 200 4020
Hftie Other emoluments
FORACER  Sderesand other benefis 3,153 150 419 185 g 154 173 - - - - 1330
WRHBRENAR  Share based payments - i 9 b4 bl i 9 - - - - 174
BT Retiement benefit scheme contributions 166 106 132 113 114 114 6 - - - - 811
ik Total emoluments 379 1,785 3040 2067 200 2047 2226 30 500 00 200 18311
PR Notes
(a) EBEBzHERLMHMBREELEL (@) The directors' salaries and other benefits above included operating
A & 8 £1,500,0005 T( =TT X leases rentals of HK$ 1,500,000 (2006:HK$1,536,000).
%:1,536,00087T) °
b)) R-BEZERF+A=1+WAE  AQFRE  (b) On 24th October, 2005, the Company granted an aggregate of
&$£1,200,00013 (= ZLF 017) B 1,200,000 (2007: nil) share options to certain directors of the
EFARQAZETES - HRNEBER=Z Company. In relation to share options granted before 1st April,
ZREMA—BARHZEBREESN=Z 2005, they had vested before 1st April, 2005, and therefore has had
THEMA—HARE  RURESEEH no financial impact to the Group in accordance with the relevant
HIREERFE 25" R A MFIE" 2 transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”.
HRIBER - HAEEL T ER I EE
@,
SuEFMBEeREEFTINAEE(ZZTEN Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Faf) HMSFHBHEHR L H&R11x Group, four (2006: four) were directors of the Company whose
(ZEBERFE  NFMEHAT - emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments of the
remaining (2006:0ne) individual were as follows:
—ETLF —EERF
2007 2006
FExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HAFERETEM Salaries and other benefits 2,273 2,079
BRTERFTBIH Retirement benefits scheme contribution 53 53
2,326 2,132
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10.

11.

MNEER

10. Interest Expense

—ETLF —EEXRF
2007 2006
FEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
A Interest on:
- RO FRATHEE - bank borrowings wholly
ZIRITEE repayable within five years 26,244 21,521
- mERE - a finance lease 7 17
26,251 21,538
BiE 11. Taxation
—EELF —EEREF
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITHIE - BB Current tax-Hong Kong
REE Current year 4,377 3,532
AED (%) REBE Under(over)provision in previous years 25 (251)
4,402 3,281
RATRIIE — R B RBE Current tax-Mainland China
REE Current year 46,892 17,035
AF(2)VREBE (Over)underprovision in previous years (101) 1,403
46,791 18,438
51,193 21,719
IEIERLIE Deferred taxation
Edess Hong Kong 789 (38)
51,982 21,681

BERBANEH Y RRAE E L ERBER
BBEI75%( BB NE17.5%) BE8%E
1 o REKRE G RATSH AR AR R A
B2BERHE

RIBPEKREARERERAS  ARFHE
THEAENBQAEENEMFEKR
BENZFEERRETRAKRELEMRS
B MEBUEREKREWELAEERE
RV = F i B R BE RS FT S B 50%
B o FEARESEFERENTALSE
BBEERMEHERE -

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2006:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Enterprise
income tax in Mainland China has been provided at the rates prevailing

in the respective jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China,
certain of the Company’s Mainland China subsidiaries are entitled to
exemption from enterprise income tax of Mainland China for the first
two years commencing from their first profit-making year of operation
and thereafter, these subsidiaries in Mainland China will be entitled
to a 50% relief from enterprise income tax of Mainland China for the
following three years. Enterprise income tax of Mainland China has

been provided for after taking these tax incentives into account.

—
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11. Bi1g &) 11. Taxation (continued)

REZEZLF=ZA+7AH E+TEZEA
RARKEFEIR2RERBBFEADLE
FRERETHBED  $E-2FNEF
—RA—BEBLEM - A BEMBEZF
WMERRAESAREAARA TS - #t
ROBRERFBEHAEBRRE 257
BUBRE 2R M BT EFER MG - B
B AR T ERENNHABR AL GRS
EEEBERAEBH 2EREREFIMBH

%o

EENERFE 2 BA HERNT

On 16th March, 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax
Law of Mainland China (“new tax law") which will take effect
on Tst January, 2008. However, the detailed implementation
rules regarding the new tax law have yet to be made public.
Consequently, the Company is not able to a make an estimate
of the expected financial effect of the new tax law on the
Group's consolidated financial statements in the coming year.
The enactment of the new tax law is not expected to have any
financial effect on the amounts accrued in the consolidated

balance sheet in respect of current tax payable.

A statement of reconciliation of taxation is as follows:

—ETLF —EERF
2007 2006
FBT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB AT R Profit before taxation 321,700 218,415
DAARMETEHZ 27%  Tax charge at the domestic income
e tax rate of 27% 86,859 58,972
FEE (BEEERE) (Over)underprovision
BETRE in prior years (76) 1,152
AT 9 B S Tax effect of expenses not
Bkege deductible for tax purposes 7,555 4,063
BEHFAIBA Tax effect of income not taxable
Bz for tax purposes (12,651) (7,189)
RFLUREIBIEEIE  Tax effect of tax losses
HHB o wE not recognised 10,128 11,508
ERZATARMERMIE  Tax effect of utilisation of tax
BEHEE S losses previously not recognised (5,176) (2,987)
UREMTEMmE > Effect of different tax rates of
BB R ERE subsidiaries in other
2 jurisdictions (8,241) (13,199)
EDMIE AR 2 Effect of income tax on concessionary
BRBEZHE rates for certain subsidiaries (27,235) (32,384)
Hity Others 819 1,745
REERIE Taxation for the year 51,982 21,681

ERAREEARNDERFEREMEZE

MR

operation of the Group is substantially based.

The domestic tax rate is a tax rate in the jurisdiction where the
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12.

13

R E 12. Dividends
—ETLF ZEERE
2007 2006
FHExT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RERNER AR ZRE . Dividend recognised as distribution during the year:
ZETEFHHRE 2007 interim dividend of HK6.0 cents
6.0 784 (2006: HK5.0 cents) per share
(ZBBRF:
B 5.084) 28,871 23,765
—ETLFRHARE 2007 special dividend of HK2.0 cents
IR 2.0 (2006: nil) per share
(ZBTREF  |) 9,624 -
—EERFHRRE 2006 final dividend of HK9.0 cents
9.0 784 (2005: HK7.5 cents) per share
(ZZZRF:
R 7.584) 43,202 35,605
81,697 59,370

EEEEBREPERRESR12.084L(=
ZERF I HSR.0EB)  AFRRER
REFASLREEBREREFEHH
RERIAREE -

. BRER

RABREFEASRERNRBERAEFT
RIBTHERE

The final dividend proposed of HK12.0 cents (2006: HK9.0 cents) per
share has been proposed by the directors and are subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting and have
not been included as liabilities in these consolidated financial statements.

13. Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the equity holders of the Company is based on the
following data:

100

—ETLEF —ZTTRE
2007 2006
FHExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RA B RREMR R R Profit for the year attributable to equity holders
STESREAREER of the Company and earnings for the purposes
BRz B of calculating basic and diluted earnings per share 223,636 168,389
ROHE
Number of shares
FBR TR
‘000 ‘000
STESREREFZ Weighted average number of shares for the purpose
INREFE 3 AR L of calculating basic earnings per share 479,441 474,816
AR R ELE 2 PES/E  Effect of dilutive potential shares
B Share options 5,618 3,445
STEESREBERRRNZ Weighted average number of shares for the purpose
INREF G AR L of calculating diluted earnings per share 485,059 478,261
ERCIEEERAT —TESAE-_STLFEFR
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14. ¥ - REKRRZRE 14. Property, Plant and Equipment
il £EBR
XA BOERE
THAEIR HEHh Furniture, AE BEREE
Construction Freghold B fixturesand Motor Plant and Ait
in progress [and Buildings ~ office equipment vehicles machinery Total

TR Thn TR Thn TR Thn TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HAE AT COST
RZEZRENA-A A 1t April, 2005 85,194 3248 237,691 67,658 54,983 189,954 638,728
NELEER Currency relignment 1375 7 47 610 479 3330 10,518
BH0E Reclassification (103,597) - 32,684 8,948 - 61,965 -
hE Additions 63,357 - 2730 5,468 4409 13,054 89,018
HE Disposals - - 2129 (3,806) (13,927) (9,893) (29,751)
RZBEAEZB=T-B  At3lstMarch, 2006 46,319 3255 275,697 78,878 45,944 258,410 708,513
NELEER Currenqy realignment 2213 705 11,186 1,262 989 11,441 27.7%
E0E Reclassification (50,763) - 35,899 149 - 13370 -
hE Additions 45120 - 141 6623 8252 15,740 71,146
WE-BHELE Acquisition of a subsidiary - - 4527 i 130 274 7508
HE-BHELF Disposal of a subsidiary - - - (406) (388) - (794)
it Disposals - - (103) (5,665) (6,152) 9:319) (21,839)
RZBBLEZR=T-R  At3!st March, 2007 42,899 3960 38017 82,263 48775 292417 798,331
TERBHEAR DEPRECIATION AND
HERE AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
R-ZZRFMA-A At 1st April, 2005 - 1913 64,170 48140 3318 87,7% 235,337
NELEER Currency realignment - 5 1,184 41 38 1413 3,361
EqEE Depreciation provided for the year - - 10,399 7,244 5316 16,006 38,965
EREEER Impairment loss for the year - - - 4 - 1526 1571
EREH Eliminated on disposals - - (197) (3,506) (11,319 (8792 (24,414)
RZBEREZA=T-R  At31stMarch, 2006 - 1918 7495 52,334 27,663 97,949 254820
HELEER Currency realignment - n 2613 1 388 4654 8038
R Depreciation provided for the year - - 11,360 6,671 5,407 16,043 39,481
ERER) BEEE (Reversal of impairment loss)
impairment loss for the year - (952) - 54 100 37 (761)
HE-BHEATBER Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary - - - (390) (387) - (1)
HEREE Fliminated on disposals - - (493) (5279 (4,774) (8292) (18,838)
RZBELEZA=T-A  At30st March, 2007 - 1338 88436 53,401 28397 110391 281,963
HEFE CARRYING VALUES
RZBFLEZA=T-A  At31stMarch, 2007 4899 260 239,581 28,862 20378 182,026 516,368
RZBENEZR=T-R  At3!st March, 2006 46329 1337 200,741 26,544 18,281 160461 453,693
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14. ¥ - BMERRZRE®

102

EXPrifz M - BMERRBEETINE
BRI T FRITE

KAEREL 3
BF 2.5% SREAFER Z 18k
FH, UBEERE

B £BR

WMNERE 9% E 45%
RE 9% & 25%
YN 4.5% 2 45%

EERBIRDERFNEITREBEA
iR EEHBABREAZAGTERE -

FR AEBRENE  BERREET
TR UEENIZEEERBEREER
REACERT HRRE © Eitt » [FW -~ 2
ERPBAERXRME]RE IR [HERBEEE]
249 BRI IR EE 18 54,000/ 7T » 100,000
TR 37,0007 °

FR ANEEFGERKAERL B ZRE
B - LB EEE952,000/8 T  ERE&R
SURFERAER o

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

depreciated on a straight line basis at the following rates per

annum:
Freehold land Nil
Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining

term of the lease or 2.5%
Furniture, fixtures
9% to 45%
9% to 25%
4.5% to 45%

and office equipment
Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery

Construction in progress will not be depreciated until the assets
are ready for intended use and accordingly is stated at cost less

accumulated impairment loss.

During the year, the Group conducted a review on the property,
plant and equipment and determined that a number of those
assets were impaired, due to the physical damage and technical
obsolescence. Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$54,000,
HK$100,000 and HK$37,000 have been recognised in respect
of furniture, fixtures and office equipment, motor vehicles, plant

and machinery respectively.

During the year, the Group reviewed the carrying value of the
freehold land and a reversal of impairment loss of HK$952,000

was credited to the consolidated income statement.
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S YEESBLE

BELIMEBEIE 2
KAEREL

IRt HERF:
EEREAZ
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EEBUIMIERFEZ
- REAE
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15. ALt iEE

REBMFEN L HSEE:

EREFACAET
- AR

HRUIMERFEZ
-REOEE
- e
- EHEE

DITERE A -
REEE
ERBEE

A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group's property interests comprise:

Freehold land held outside Hong Kong

Leasehold building located on land:

Held in Hong Kong under
— medium-term lease

Held outside Hong Kong under:
- Long lease
— Medium-term lease

— Short-term lease

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

15. Prepaid Lease Payments

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

Leasehold land in Hong Kong under:

— Medium-term lease

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong under:

—Long lease
— Medium-term lease

— Short-term lease

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Current asset

Non-current asset

BB —BEA
2007 2006
FBR FE
HK$'000 HK$'000
2,622 1,337
11,962 12,483
545 625
219,939 187,633
7,135 -
242,203 202,078
—BBLE —BEXE
2007 2006
FBT FB7
HK$'000 HK$°000
12,499 12,809
1,342 1,366
62,857 62,774
1,242 -
77,940 76,949
2,212 2,280
75,728 74,669
77,940 76,949
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16. BHE

A
R=BEEFMA—AR
—EBXE=A=+—A
REBHEA T
AT

REZZRLHE=A=+—H

REBESHFRBBAEDREBRIEE
A REZEBEHTZECREELSE
UIREEEEN]  HEZREES DR

16. Goodwill

At
Total
FHET
HK$'000
AT COST

At 1st April, 2005 and 31st March, 2006 19,231

Avrising on acquisition of
additional interests in subsidiaries 11,260
At 31st March, 2007 30,491

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGU"s) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The carrying

T amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:
—ETLF —ETRE
2007 2006
FBT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HERBIERE Sale and manufacture of solvents 18,508 17,343
SHE R RS BEBH Sale and manufacture of lubricants 1,888 1,888
HERBERR Sale and manufacture of coatings 10,095 -
30,491 19,231

REBEEZ-ZTLF=A=+—-RALEFE"
FEECEEERABQEHECRESES
BVIWHERE -

REELBENARESEDZACAE
EMEE - FHERAEENRAZEZER
RIBEHMAZTRE  BREKAHHE
EEREERAZEBMEL - EEEU
AIRRBEHSTEES 2FEBEERZ
REeELENVMEYRR AT RMER
RE - BREDENFER 2B REM
E - HEEREERAZEZBHARER
FEPIRFAH A RHS 2B MEE -

RAFE  AEBRREEEEHEZS
BROEHVBEAESHZRAREFRSE
o WEAERKERES%  RRMHS
ERUERRENTERASELEEVE
ERR L  ERAEETEZERR
B BEREBENF10% E16% 7%  BE
BEITEZTERE -

During the year ended 31st March, 2007, management of the
Group determines that there is no impairment of any of its CGUs

containing goodwill.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value
in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during
the period. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax
rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are
based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and
direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market.

During the year, the Group performed impairment review for
goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from the respective
most recent financial budgets for the next five years approved by
management using a discount rate of 6.5% which reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs. The growth rates per annum range from
10% to 16% in light of the Group’s industry growth forecasts. No

impairment loss was considered necessary.
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17. BIL&E 17. Intangible Asset
F AT NG
Technical knowhow
FHT
HK$'000
2% AT COST
R-ZEZHRFHA—H ZZTTRF At 1Tst April, 2005,31st March, 2006 and
=A=+-BER=ZEZEtF=A=+—H 31st March, 2007 5,000
e AMORTISATION
R-_ZZHFEWMA—AH At Tst April, 2005 2,000
FREE Provided for the year 1,000
R-ZBERE=A=+—H At 31st March, 2006 3,000
FRERE Provided for the year 1,000
A—EZLE=A=1+—H At 31st March, 2007 4,000
IRENFEE CARRYING VALUE
HN_ZZt+tHF=A=+—H At 31st March, 2007 1,000
R-ZZRF=ZA=+—H At 31st March, 2006 2,000

AEECEMEERNBYE=EWER
EEBEBEEER R AR R - &
FEEDRAESENENTEAENE
R o

The intangible asset of the Group represents the cost of the
technical knowhow acquired from an independent third party
to manufacture certain insulating varnish products. The cost of
the intangible asset is amortised on a straight line basis over its

estimated useful life of five years.

18. A HERE 18. Available-for-sale Investment
—EELF —EERE
2007 2006
F#ExT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEHRAES Unlisted shares in Mainland China,
BRAER B at cost less impairment loss 17,653 16,841

MM ZEREAEA A ERFEEE
CERREREER MELRREEE
BELTRG AAAESRARETS
SRR AE R ARRBRE &
B A2 HEHE -

19. EftbERBEE 19

HEEDEARESEEMES ZAER
REFEHE B (MB) BRARRRBEESE

s

Ho

=

A

The above investment represents investment in unlisted equity
shares and is measured at cost less impairment at each balance
sheet date because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion

that the fair value cannot be measured reliably.

Other Non-current Assets

The amount represents the cost of club debentures held by the
Group and is measured at cost less accumulated impairment

losses, if any, at each balance sheet date.
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20. 78

21.

22,

B Raw materials
M Work in progress
Do) Finished goods

FEUR AR

REE B RYERFZRE DT ¢

TE2={EA 0 - 3 months
Nz 7 {E B 4 - 6 months
NMEAKE Over 6 months

REEMEBRHETFRMBI0OREIORZ
=EH -

H b FE UYL iR X

FEBZEERAEMERREZARE
SEPRE(EERE ©

20. Inventories

—ETLE —FTX

2007 2006
FiBR FE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
245,261 184,837
30,284 23,276
142,222 133,629
417,767 341,742

21. Trade Debtors

An aged analysis of trade debtors at the balance sheet date is as

follows:

—E22LF e
2007 2006
FTET FTHERT
HK$'000 HK$'000
587,061 494,158
135,082 93,653
29,145 23,038
751,288 610,849

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days to its

trade customers.

22 Other Debtors

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of other debtors

approximate to their fair values.
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24,

A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fTEEmIA 23 Derivative Financial Instruments
S S
2007 2006
FEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REIMNES X Forward foreign exchange contracts 4 2

R-ZZBEZBLHE=ZRA=+—10 ' AEECS K
E2HARBRMINESGN 2 BERRTER
51,000 &7t (2006 : 47,000 & T) °

FEHTEMITETIACDABEED S
2,000 7T (2006 : 2,000 7T) » WEAF
RZiFalERPEEA ©

AEBEBAMTERE PR BIER BT
MEEHIMEMEHERKRETTA -

At 31st March, 2007, the total notional amount of outstanding
forward foreign exchange contracts committed by the Group

amounted to Euro$51,000 (2006:Euro$47,000).

Change in the fair value of non-hedging currency derivatives
amounting to HK$2,000 (2006: HK$2,000) has been credited to

the consolidated income statement during the year.

The Group does not currently designate any hedging relationship
on the forward foreign exchange contracts for the purpose of

hedging accounting.

FRFTETENRSEEBRAOAEFE The above derivatives are measured at fair value at each balance

HEARBEEREAZEEARTRETIARSRD sheet date. Their fair values are determined based on the prices

EmEE - quoted by the bank for the equivalent instruments from bank at
the balance sheet date.

IRITESBRRE S 24. Bank Balances and Cash

RERBITHEFBETIILFUEHER
BRI 2 NREER BB ZFE ©

EYH United States dollar
BT Hong Kong dollar
AR® RMB

FMERTERERENEHROTI% £52%
(2006 : FH0.7% & 2.5%) sTE R ERME{EE
HAFEBE -

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts

denominated in a currencies other than the functional currencies.

—ETLE —EEXE
2007 2006
FB FBR
HK$'000 HK$'000
102,461 34,940
4,281 7,313
1,022 818
107,764 43,071

All bank deposits carry interest ranging from 0.7% to 5.2%
per annum (2006: 0.7% to 2.5%) and the carrying amounts

approximate to their fair values.
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25. BRI R ETTER 25. Creditors and Accrued Charges
REER  BRNRRREGTTERESRERE At the balance sheet date, the balance of creditors and accrued
FEfFE $£309,674,000 B T (ZEFRF charges included trade creditors of HK$309,674,000 (2006:
221,912,000/&7T) REEHENERZ HK$221,912,000) . An aged analysis of trade creditors at the
ERERDMTAOT ¢ balance sheet date is as follows:
S ey
2007 2006
FEx FExT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEZE={A8 0 - 3 months 305,584 217,544
mZ<1E A 4 - 6 months 3,579 3,229
~MEA U E Over 6 months 511 1,139
309,674 221,912
26. BAEHE 26. Obligations under a Finance Lease
BRIEBSMAR REHASHIREE
Minimum Present value of minimum
lease payments lease payments
—ETLE —ETAF —ETLE  —TTAF
2007 2006 2007 2006
T FEx FExT FHExT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REREN Amounts payable
FEASFRIE : under a finance lease:
—FR Within one year - 40 _ 33
W RRASER Less: Future finance charges = 7) = -

FEIREERLIR Present value of lease
RMEABN—  obligations due for settlement
REE (BRINE within one year (shown under

REEMFE L) current liabilities) - 33 - 33
R-BERF=ZA=+—BZ&EHAEUD The balance as at 31st March, 2006 represented the outstanding
MEIRBE-—WSEsHArE - HER principal regarding the hire purchase of a motor vehicle with
His® > FEA45E  EEEE WET a lease term of 5 years. The lease was on 4.5% interest rate
MSHAREE R - per annum, on a fixed repayment basis and there were no

arrangement entered into for contingent rental payments.
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27. RITEE 27 Bank Borrowings

—EetE —EEAE
2007 2006
FExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITER Bank loans 470,884 513,275
AR ZEE Discounted bills 13,260 -
484,144 513,275

EIRIFRITEEER The borrowings are unsecured

DT FEEE - and repayable as follows:

EERTH—FR On demand or within one year 428,508 347,390

—FEEMFR More than one year but not exceeding two years 55,636 110,249

MEERZE=FR More than two years but not more than three years - 55,636

484,144 513,275
W BER—ERFEBL Less: Amounts due within one year
BMARBEBEZER shown under current liabilities (428,508) (347,390)
55,636 165,885
—EEtE —BeAE
2007 2006
FHEEAREMT ¢ The average interest rates paid were as follows:

RITEK Bank loans 4.90% 4.12%
B AREBNRITERAZBAEE The Group's bank loans are variable-rate borrowings which carry
M FEREFBRTEEIFEM0.4% BE annual interests at the range of Hong Kong Interbank Offered
BIRITRIZEIRENMO0.725% ME—BRRE3 Rate ("HIBOR") plus 0.4% to HIBOR plus 0.725%. Interest is
BRAEE—IR ° repriced every 3 months.

FIEREBZEEUMEE AR 2 IhEEEY All the Group's borrowings are denominated in functional
XAF e currencies of the relevant entity.

REBZEERANLERZ D ABEEER The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the above
HE{EEE ° borrowings approximate to their fair values.

109
Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited 2006-2007 Annual Report \/



A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. IEIER IR

UTAREBCEIACTERELEREAE
HEERNAER LFAZEREZS -

28. Deferred Taxation

The followings are the major deferred taxation liabilities and
assets recognised by the Group and movements thereon during

the current and prior years:

IEBIEE
Accelerated tax KARIE Hith “Et
depreciation Tax losses Others Total
FAET FHET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZZEREMA—A At st April, 2005 1,905 (635) (129) 1,141
MEREWEERETA)  (Credit) charge to consolidated
R income statement for the year (54) 16 - (38)
REZZBERE At 31st March, 2006
=A=+—H 1,851 (619) (129) 1,103
FRRGERGER Charge to consolidated
HIBR income statement for the year 52 608 129 789
NZBZELE At 31st March, 2007
=BA=+—H 1,903 1,892

REFIBEREATNE - BT REHER
ERARDEEY - AENBEREARZ
BILBRESH AT :

(11) -

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred taxation
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the

deferred taxation balances for financial reporting purposes:

—ETLF —EEREF

2007 2006

FExT FExT

HK$'000 HK$'000

EIERIBEE Deferred taxation assets - (691)
EERIBEE Deferred taxation liabilities 1,892 1,794
1,892 1,103

R-ZBBLF=A=+—0 rEEEKRE
R IE BB 236,902,000 T(ZEE X
F 1 234,001,000 70 ) AT SH AR HOGER o
BE-ZZtE=A=1—0  OEINHK
515 62,0008 7T (ZFER4F : 3,537,0008
T)RELEHEEE - SEEHRE 2
BEE  RRIEBEBRRREBT BRI
MBRIELTIEEE o HAREETREIARRE
BARE - MARBERERT 236,840,000
TL(ZEZNE © 230,464,00058 7T )RR E
BE - HP215216,000/8TT(ZFFRE !
206,169,000 7 7 ) i #5518 AT SR BR A5 S -
BEER T ——F A EE -

At 31st March, 2007, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$236,902,000 (2006: HK$234,001,000) available
to offset against future profits. A deferred taxation asset has been
recognised in respect of HK$62,000 (2006: HK$3,537,000) of such
losses as at 31st March, 2007. Management believes that there will
be sufficient future profits available in the future for realisation of
deferred taxation assets in respect of such tax losses by reference to
financial budgets. No deferred taxation asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$236,840,000 (2006:HK$230,464,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the
unrecognised tax losses, HK$215,216,000 (2006: HK$206,169,000)
may be carried forward indefinitely and the balance will expire at

various dates up to and including 2011.
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29. |7 29. Share Capital
EE
Authorised BEITRAZE

—EELER Issued and fully paid
—EERF —EELF —EERF
2007 & 2006 2007 2006
FHET FExT FHET
HK'000 HK’000 HK’'000
BREE.10BT 2R  Shares of HK$0.10 each 80,000 48,164 47,656
FREAARZEHITRABUATEE : Movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the

year are as follows:

RIDEE il
Number of shares Amount
FR FExT

‘000 HK$'000

R-ZEZREWNMA—H At st April, 2005 472,930 47,293

1TEEEARAE (MI5E a) Exercise of share options (note a) 3,627 363

RZFBEARE=A=1+—H At31st March, 2006 and

R-ZEZEXFWNA—H 1st April, 2006 476,557 47,656

TEEARAEEE b) Exercise of share options (note b) 5,085 508

RZZZBLF=A=+—H At31st March, 2007 481,642 48,164

Mi&E Notes:

(a) MREBZEZZEAFE=A=+-—HILEE (@)  During the year ended 31st March, 2006, 3,627,000 share
W #£743,627,000 8 2 1B R FER 5 # options were exercised, resulting in the issue of 800,000 shares,
1T » A E A % 5347 800,000 2,075,000 shares and 752,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the
B ~ 2,075,000 % & 752,000 % & & E Company at a price of HK$1.190, HK$1.590 and HK$2.004 per
BHO0BLZRG EREEDHA share respectively.

1.1907 7T ~ 1.590 8T 2.004 BT ©

by REBE-ZEZLF=ZA=1+—HLEFE (b)  During the year ended 31st March, 2007, 5,085,000 share
A » 75 5,085,000 iR = BB IR FEAR 10 1T options were exercised, resulting in the issue of 300,000 shares,
& - A2 F)E k2 B2 1T 300,000 % 1,075,000 shares and 3,710,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the
1,075,000% % 3,710,000 iR B AR EI{E0.10 Company at a price of HK$1.190, HK$1.590 and HK$2.004 per
BrzBM SRIEEDHIF1.190E share respectively.

JT ~ 1.590 87T} 2.004 BT °
FEERITRAHEMEFAHEERZHER All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares in issue

MNEEREER - in all respects.
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30. IE AR FEET 2

112

REZBZEZFAAZH  AQARKBER
—E-ZFNAAZHIBZRITBRES
B[RS UEEREBHERS
FERABDESLHHRAET 2E+LE
ZIRFR - BATFH B2 BN BRBERHEBS
HEATFEHER  WRESBREZER
M UEIRRRAZRPEZEZER R
BHEE ERUREBRETEERZ
AEEES  @EARARAWBLRZ
B AEEZERE R BEREN
BERBHAA TERFREAREWM M
PR - URBARBZRG - RHZBR
ERRRE Bt ERTE MEME
HAEERENAMB 2T NAR -
MER 2 BRERRE N BTz REHX
RE-BRERO ZHZIABBERABUT
ZERSEORODVREEHZRHE
(NVRORBERH BB AERS BT
HWRHE ; K (i) RH2EE - RIFRITE
HURHcEREEE ZRODBE LR
THBBRIUERTERENIEAALD
RAZEBITRAI10% ZEESE - A
RTEFRACRE 2BREMRT ZRED
HELRBFEASEBTIHERTREZ
30% ° EAREB/AD R ZRRAMER » £
EA—FR > RFEMA L 2BRERSD
HE TEEBARAITKEBITRGOZ
1% °

R-ZZZHF+AZTHIA  A2FRE
TR BRI B8 2155 8,626,000 (=
ZELE  B)RBRET N5UEZRHIES
(BREIATES) SRITEER2.004%

JC ©

i

30. Share Option Scheme

On 3rd September, 2002, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the "Existing Scheme”) which will expire on 2nd
September, 2012 in order to comply with the terms of Chapter
17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The purpose of the Existing
Scheme is to recognise and motivate the participants and to
provide incentives and a direct economic interest in attaining
the long term business objectives of the Company. Under the
Existing Scheme, the directors may grant options to any eligible
employees of the Group, including directors of the Company
or its subsidiaries, legal, financial, management and technical
advisers and consultants, major customers and raw material and
machinery suppliers of the Group, to subscribe for shares in the
Company. Options granted are exercisable within ten years from
the date of grant, where the acceptance date should not be later
than 28 days after the date of offer. A nominal consideration
of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of options. The
subscription price of the option share is not less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the shares on the date of grant; (ii)
the average closing prices of the shares on the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the Existing Scheme may
not exceed in nominal amount of 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company at the date of approval of the Existing Scheme.
However, the total maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding shares options must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital from time to time. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of,
the shares of the Company in issue from time to time, without

prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

On 24th October, 2005, a total of 8,626,000 (2007: nil) share
options were granted to 115 full time employees, including the
executive directors, at an exercise price of HK$2.004 under the

terms of the Existing Scheme.
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BE-ZZLF=-A=+-HLWMEF
B AOEZBRESEPERITE 2B
RERLEEZ NEFITEEZBH

A B ER &5 [15E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. Share Option Scheme (continued)

A summary of the movements of the outstanding options and
their related weighted average exercise prices during each of the
two years ended 31st March, 2007 under the Company’s share

wmE option schemes are as follows :
BREHA
Number of share options
REZZERF R=ZZLF
MA—H =RB=+—H
HARITE  FRETRE 5 RATHE
1{T{#f8 Outstanding Exercised  Outstanding
BHAH  Exercise at during at
Date of grant price 1.4.2006 the year 31.3.2007
BT
HK$
BiTsrEl Existing Scheme —EE_F+—-A+WH 1.190 1,900,000 300,000 1,600,000
14th November, 2002
—EEMFRAT+LA 1.590 2,950,000 1,075,000 1,875,000
17th May, 2004
—ZEEWE+ANA 1.690 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
8th October, 2004
—ETRF+AZTEA 2.004 7,874,000 3,710,000 4,164,000
24th October, 2005
15,724,000 5,085,000 10,639,000
InREFEg
BRITEE
Weighted average
exercise price
per share
BT
HK$ 1.768 1.868 1.720
BREHE
Number of share options
R-ZZRF RZZBEXRF
mA—H FRE FRE =A=+—8H
i RATHE R T1E e RATRE
{TfE{8 Outstanding Granted Exercised  Outstanding
EH BH Exercise at during during at
Date of grant  price 1.4.2005 the year the year 31.3.2006
BT
HK$
H475H8 Existing Scheme Z=ZZZH+—-A+WMAE 1.190 2,700,000 - 800,000 1,900,000
14th November, 2002
—EENFHERA+TLEHE 1590 5,025,000 - 2,075,000 2,950,000
17th May, 2004
—EEWFE+ANE 169 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
8th October, 2004
“ZZEF+A-+TImA  2.004 - 8,626,000 752,000 7,874,000
24th October, 2005
10,725,000 8,626,000 3,627,000 15,724,000
bR
BRITEE
Weighted average
exercise price
per share
BT
HK$ 1.517 2.004 1.588 1.768
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30. iR RE &l (&) 30. Share Option Scheme (continued)
FHREBRERULERNRRNESHERRE Details of the options held by the directors included in the above
ZHEBWT table are as follows:

BREHE
Number of share options
RZZBEREF R-ZZLHF
HA—H =A=+—H
EARITRE FRETE e RATHE
{TfE{8 Outstanding Exercised  Outstanding
=kt Exercise at during at
Date of grant price 1.4.2006 the year 31.3.2007
BT
HK$
RiTEE Existing Scheme ~ —ZZ_F+—HA+MA 1.190 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
14th November, 2002
—ZEEMFRAT+LA 1.590 750,000 150,000 600,000
17th May, 2004
—EERF+A=-+MA 2.004 800,000 200,000 600,000
24th October, 2005
3,050,000 350,000 2,700,000
BREHE
Number of share options
R-ZZRF RIBEREF
mA—H FALE FRNE ZA=t+—H
i RATE R ixcd i RATHE
{TfE{8 Outstanding Granted Exercised  Outstanding
R BH Exercise at during during at
Date of grant  price 1.4.2005 the year the year 31.3.2006
BT
HK$
IR{T5TE] Existing Scheme —ZZE-F+—HF+MWAHA 1.190 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
14th November, 2002
—EFENFHRA+TEH 1590 1,200,000 - 450,000 750,000
17th May, 2004
“EERF+AZ+IMA  2.004 - 1,200,000 400,000 800,000
24th October, 2005

2,700,000 1,200,000 850,000 3,050,000
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30. BB AERTE ()

FRARTHEBRERBVNEFLIIRES
3.0658B T (ZBERF 2,198 ) c &
BEAMKRITEBREZ FORBESNFE
BTS8F(ZTTRF: 8745F) °

R-ZZRFTA-THERBBRE
ZARBZBREZGHAIRERER
0.1458 BT °

ZEAVEDRE MHhR -k €8
BAAE - ZEERX 2B ABES AW
T

A B ER &5 [15E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. Share Option Scheme (continued)

The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise of
share option during the year was HK$3.065 (2006: HK$2.198).
The option outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted

average remaining contract life of 7.58 years (2006: 8.74 years).
The estimated fair value of the options granted on 24th October,

2005 date was HK$0.1458 per share.

This fair values were calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing

model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

IIEFIIRRE Weighted average share price HK$1.990
TEE Exercise price HK$2.004
TR E Expected volatility 25%
FAHEAMR Expected life 2 years
|ERAIZE Risk free rate 3.75%
FEITREE Expected dividend yield 6.73%

HAHEN R — SR EERXTFTER
ABEZEZRFR  BEREZKE:
HEBERABRZZHVEALEQATE
ZAfiEt e

FBIREDREADBDRERNBE=FR
ZELRENE - REEXEAZETF
HEMFERNE  TERIRITAZER
ENFE BEEEEZHEMRELR
o

R-ZZEZRF+ A FHEE R 8,626,000
BRERETEEEZAEBRES(BEX
RAREMBARZES) SRITHEEAS
2.0048 7T - WAESTREBREZESW
Bz BRER1158T -

“ETRE=A=1—R, KEEIAH
NHERERS 2BER%H1,258000%

o

I

Because the Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input
of highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility of share
prices, change in subjective input assumptions can materially

affect the fair value estimate.

Expected volatility was determined by using historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous 3 years.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behaviour al

considerations.

In October 2005, a total of 8,626,000 options were granted
to eligible employees of the Group (including directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries) at an exercise price of HK$2.004.
Total consideration received from employees for taking up the

options granted amounted to HK$115.

The Group recognised total expenses of HK$1,258,000 related
to share option payment transactions during the year ended 31st
March, 2006.
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A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. ERMEAE 31. Capital Commitments
—EEts e
2007 2006
FExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
MABYE - MEKRME  Contracted for but not provided in the consolidated
ERIHNELGREIFERESD  finandial statements in respect of the
RFEE acquisition of property, plant and equipment 11,796 25,903
32. EERNAILE 32. Operating Lease Commitments
TEBEREBA The Group as lessee
REER > AEERRTIEHER2H At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding
EWE - BFIRMBRE 2 T REE commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
EBOMARESTRRFEEERE ! cancellable operating leases in respect of rented properties and
storage tanks and ancillary facilities which fall due as follows:
BRI R M B R it
nEmE Storage tanks and
Rented properties ancillary facilities
—zeiE —zziE —zzts e
2007 2006 2007 2006
FExT FHET FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 4,335 3,489 = 6,736
F_EZFRF In the second to
(BEEME fifth year inclusive
BIEEA) 14,468 11,936 - 6,174
hE#R After five years 13,216 13,843 - -
32,019 29,268 - 12,910
RIBEAEBET Y 2EY  HEHH—F Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease terms are
E2+F - REEFFIRMEBREZES from one year to ten years. The lease payments are fixed except
SERSRAERHBEZEEMmMGMM  H for the rental of storage tanks and ancillary facilities of which
RS TIRIE R R ERE AT © additional storage charges would be incurred if the monthly
usage exceeded a certain level.
116
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32. ERMARE =)

REBEE[HBEA

REER  ARERBFCHITUTER
SR B MY B R b o2 R R B R AR E R

—FR
B_EZERF (ERMFEEEN)

Within one year

TRIRMBRECREEEFRERZ
HEHAMEF -

33. @A LRS

FR o AEEDBIZF720,0008 T (=2
F R4 :720,00077T) ~ 600,000 T (=
7< :600,000 % 7T ) & 180,000 T (=
ZRF 2160008 T)2HEFHEER
EERAT  ZEREERATAREBM
BB ERAT  RATRZESELERL
ECEFHRERRBIEEESRINZ=
BARGEESaE HEDEBREBREY
AT e

]

A

TEEHBASRLLDRZES - WEFHH
ZEBERMEE -

32.

33.

A B ER &5 [15E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Operating Lease Commitments (continued)

The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants
to receive the following future minimum sub-leasing payments in

respect of storage tanks and ancillary facilities:

—EELF ZEERE

2007 2006

FHET FHET

HK$’'000 HK$'000

271 1,749

In the second to fifth year inclusive - 996
271 2,745

These storage tanks and ancillary facilities have committed

tenants and licences for a lease term of two years.

Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Group paid rent of HK$720,000 (2006:
HK$720,000), HK$600,000 (2006: HK$600,000) and
HK$180,000 (2006: HK$216,000 ) to Goldex Investments
Limited, Galsheer Investments Limited and Microphase
Technology Company Limited respectively in which Mr. Ip Chi
Shing, Tony, Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, Stephen and Mr. Ng Siu Ping,
George, the directors of the Company, have beneficial interests
respectively. The rents were paid in accordance with the relevant

rental agreements.

The key management personnel are the directors of the
Company. The details of the remuneration paid to them are set

out in note 9.
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34. BB RIGHE

118

AEE2BREBFRKERGIZL 2
ERERFHTHERMKTE D RRE
BESHRANR-ZZTFE+ AR 2R
BEE(RESHE)) - 2EFI2E
ERAKECEESHEE  AXRAE
BeERESEE  ARBESENY
Zh > RABERAFEREZEETE
BEAZEANERASESBERES
2 ER-ZEETFT-A-AHUR
MABCERERSEBESHE -

ROBRPEMRILZHEAEEETIH T
BB EE 2 EREERKBREE 2K
cMBARZHRBEEHFE A

ot ERZERABAFEZES - AK
Bz - EEAmZER KRB SRS
HOEER o

FH} ] ﬁ/ ‘ﬂﬂﬂ

mEWERATERZ4,105,00087T (=
Z R 3,766,000 Bxt) REREB RS
SR AIFT A Z L BB R S e 2 it
HoR-ZBELE=A=1+—-0  BAE
R HIR RS 2 4150 387,000 BT (=T F
7<% :382,000 &) MRS FZEE -
HERBECREER BRI -

1]

34. Retirement Benefit Plan

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Employees who
were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment
of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the
ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new
employees joining the Group on or after 1st December, 2000 are

required to join the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in Mainland China
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the government of Mainland China. The subsidiary
is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit

plan is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated income
statement of HK$4,105,000 (2006: HK$3,766,000) represents
contributions payable to these plans by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the plans. As at 31st March, 2007,
contributions of HK$387,000 (2006: HK$382,000) due in respect
of the reporting period had not been paid over to the plans. The

amounts were paid over subsequent to the balance sheet date.
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35. WEEK B A ] 35. Acquisition of a Subsidiary

R-ZZLF—F+2H FEE@OER
AIERRER ((RR D) 2H B QW EE
IEZEBRAERADEIER]D 2
4A0% KR EIEE A —BERFERH
BRIZEREEFIEEEHEEERE -
REEEWER  AEE - \BRRETS
SEERIE(EIE)FEREIEEZ
40% ~ 40% 2. 20% o ST REREFERTE
R RERERBEBEE LHWEE
AR B —AHAEEB L& (%
FEN]  B—ERERE LSS ([1R%

Bl e

RBBTAE  AARRETIEDBEE
BEAMET AR Z280%R20% - AAET
BrE—HERRETESHEZ -t
(FRENBETIEASHBAGE —GRESZ
PR - REFRESEEEEREEFH
1,190,000 5t (R AT EE ez +
W)  BIEERARDBRZZENE
AT TETEEA Z LS R EERE
RBRWIB2EE -

RIELBWER > ARAEERESEHER
ERESHWEIEXCEGRZEERE
EZWABX - -EEREE B &
SEMEIESELERRENARTZ
REVBREAN BERZBU2RES
31,687,000 A R# (1HZ 749 31,877,000 8
JU) o WIHKREEE EABEEAR -

On 12th January, 2007, the Group acquired a 40% equity interest
of Zhanjiang Best Lubricant Blending Limited (“ZBLB"), a sino-
foreign co-operative joint venture company with limited liability
established in Mainland China, from subsidiaries of Royal Dutch
Shell plc (“Shell”). Immediately prior to this acquisition, ZBLB
was owned as 40% by the Group, 40% by Shell and 20% by
Zhanjiang Port Group Company Limited (“Zhanjiang Port”).
ZBLB is primarily engaged in the manufacture of and trading in
lubricants in Mainland China and comprised two operating units,
one operated independently by the Group (“Best Unit”) and one
independently by Shell (“Shell’s Unit"”).

Upon the completion of the acquisition, ZBLB is owned legally
as to 80% by the Company and 20% by Zhanjiang Port. Since
the only contribution by Zhanjiang Port is a piece of land where
ZBLB is located (which is also the only distribution it entitles upon
dissolution of ZBLB) and it is only entitled to receive a fixed rate
of dividend of approximately HK$1.19 million (deemed lease
payment for the piece of land where ZBLB locates) per annum,
ZBLB is deemed to be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and the land injected by Zhanjiang Port is excluded from business

acquired from Shell.

Prior to this acquisition, since the Group was entitled to all the
income, expenses, assets and liabilities directly arising from the
Best Unit pursuant to the joint venture agreement, the Best Unit
was consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
of the Company accordingly. The purchase consideration for
Shell’s Unit was RMB31,687,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,877,000). This acquisition has been accounted for using

purchase method.
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35. WEE—REMEB AR @

120

35. Acquisition of a Subsidiary (continueq)

REBtA
WEES 2
BRESEE ANRE
Acquiree’s T
carrying amount Fair value ARE
before combination adjustment Fair value
FHEx T FHxT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz FEE Net assets acquired:
WE - BMEREZE Property, plant and equipment 5,875 1,633 7,508
FEURERR Trade debtors 9,865 - 9,865
HinEU R R B FE Other debtors and prepayments 6,595 - 6,595
MITHEBRERS Bank balances and cash 41,693 - 41,693
ERERRRESEA Creditors and accrued charges (33,784) - (33,784)
RIEEFT Total consideration 30,244 1,633 31,877
FHAFR Satisfied by:
e Cash 31,877
WEMB AT ZEERAFEFE  Net cash inflow arising on acquisition
RBeRE Cash consideration (31,877)
W SRITEFRRS Cash and cash equivalents acquired 41,693
9,816

PLIB U EE 2 M B A S Y URES B e 2 &
EHIEHEAZRFMELA474,0008 T2 E
Eﬁ o

it LARMBER =TT ENA—B X
B —EELEAEEZBEXERR
3,918,289,0008 T MBZE=—TZELF=
B=t+—HLEFEZ&FIFER 271,139,000
BT BEERERSACH T R—E
BARAEEMR -_ZEEARFONA-—ATK
WEEBEREScEXERKEEE T
T B BERREEZTER -

This newly acquired interests in the Shell Unit contributed a profit
of HK$474,000 for the period from date of acquisition to the

balance sheet date.

If the above acquisition had been completed on 1st April,
2006, total group turnover for 2007 would have been
HK$3,918,289,000 and profit for the year ended 31st March
2007 would have been HK$271,139,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purpose only and is not necessarily
an indication of turnover and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1st April, 2006, nor it intended to be a projection

of future results.
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36. HE—FEMELQR

REIZZLF-ANH AEEHERE
MELRBMETAEFERAE (HML
ITDRHEEERERARZFEENT ¢

A B R &5 [15E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. Disposal of a Subsidiary

On 4th January, 2007, the Group disposed of a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Concord Chemical Storaging Limited (“CCS"). The net

assets of this company at the date of disposal were as follows:

—EELHF
2007
FExT
HK$'000
HEZFEE Net assets disposed of:
ME - MEKEZE Property, plant and equipment 17
FEURBRTX Trade debtors 477
HaEWIRF R FBIFIE  Other debtors and prepayments 1,171
BITERRES Bank balances and cash 34
HibEN IR ESTER  Other creditors and accrued charges (1,022)
677
HEEF Gain on disposal 487
REEF Total consideration 1,164
B Satisfied by:
Be Cash 1,164
HENBARZ Net cash inflow arising
RERANFEE on disposal:
RENE Cash consideration 1,164
HEZRITEFRRS Bank balance and cash disposed of (34)
1,130

RAERHECCSERAER o E %5
£ 13,126,000 8 T & A& B 2 BB AR R

During the year, CCS contributed HK$13,126,000 to the Group’s
turnover and HK$956,000 to the Group’s profit before taxation

956,000 T °

for the year.
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37.

122

HERREE

R-BELEXAZ+LEB  IFHEEL
ITERERATIRER IHEEZRERAR
(ARRFEREBR LA MRD
A ERRREE75% BECEERBA
ATESF)RERCIESERAT (ME
B)RELEXEEERAF(TEL) (5
RIREBRPERIL AR ((EH ) HEE
ECIBRARTEZAT] (—RAFE
BRI ZzHBEELE BrREEHE
B60% R HBIERES 40%EH) 5T L
R EREGE - RIEZRHEERZ B
FREKT71,626,000 A RE (HERY
73,775,000 ) (A FHE) 2 REEE
FEEBEATZEMMAER - REMR
% BEATRBEAARDTEET75% B
ZREEMBAR °

BEGEZHBEEHRARNA-22 L
FARASTEAZARTRER o

37. Post Balance Sheet Event

On 27th June, 2007, Jiangmen Handsome Chemical
Development Ltd. and Yip's Industrial Holdings Limited
(companies incorporated in Mainland China and Hong Kong
respectively with limited liability, both of which are indirect
75% owned subsidiaries of the Company) (the “Purchasers”)
entered into a share transfer agreement (the “Share Transfer
Agreement”) with Hang Sing Chemical Trading Company Limited
("Hang Sing”) and Heng Feng Industrial Group Limited (“Heng
Feng”) (companies incorporated in Hong Kong and Mainland
China respectively with limited liability) (the “Vendors”) and
BRE (L THRADF (the “Target Company”), a sino-foreign equity
joint venture company established in Mainland China, currently
owned as to 60% by Heng Feng and 40% by Hang Sing. Under
the Share Transfer Agreement, the Purchasers agreed to purchase
from the Vendors the entire equity interest in the Target Company
at a consideration of approximately RMB71,626,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$73,775,000), subject to adjustment. Upon
completion, the Target Company will become an indirect 75%

owned subsidiary of the Company.

Details of the Sales and Purchase Agreement have been published

in the Company’s announcement dated 27th June, 2007.
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38. TEMBLE

ARAZEEMBARNRZ

=t —HZFENT

DAER

Name of company

BERRERAF

Base Rich Development Limited

Bauhinia Paints Limited

EHEEE (R ERAT

Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing
(Chengdu) Co., Limited

RPERERAH

Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing
Limited
ZHERR (LB BRAF

Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd

EHIEER ORI BRAF
(BIBRN AR IBRAR)
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd
(Formerly known as Shenzhen
Da Chong Chemical Ltd.)
ZHERZ OLE) BRAR
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing
(Shantou) Co., Ltd

A B ER &5 [15E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. Principal Subsidiaries

tF=A

B,/
ik
Place of
incorporation/
registration

BB
Hong Kong

RBRELES
British Virgin Islands

hE KR
-BENMELE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

BB

Hong Kong

IETPN:
-BENERHE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

lEPN:
-BENERHE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

RE KR
-BENMELE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st March,

2007 are as follows:

BRIRE/
AMERZEE
Nominal value
of issued capital/
registered capital

EBR-28
Ordinary - HK$2

LER — 1,000
Ordinary - HK$1,000

—28,000,000 AR#
Capital Contribution
- RMB$28,000,000

LBER - 2087
EFERR — 600,000 78 7T
Ordinary - HK$20
Deferred - HK$600,000

EXER
—3,600,000 %7

Capital Contribution
- US$3,600,000

EAER
—10,000,0003& 7T

Capital Contribution
- HK$10,000,000

—8,000,000 77T
Capital Contribution
- HK$8,000,000

SESERE
BRTKR SR
BRAZED
Proportional of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Group

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

TBEH
Principal activities
MERE

Property investment

REZR

Investment holding

BENEE
BERER
Manufacture of and
trading in Solvents and

Coatings

BEREREH

Trading in Solvents and

Coatings

BENEE
BERER
Manufacture of and
trading in Solvents and

Coatings

SUENEE
BERER
Manufacture of and
trading in Solvents and

Coatings

BENEE
BE K2R
Manufacture of and
trading in Solvents and

Coatings
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38. TEMBAT @)

DAEE

Name of company

Bauhinia Paints (Thailand)

Manufacturing Limited
FEFRE (P BRAF

Bauhinia Variegata Ink &
Chemicals (Zhongshan) Ltd.

FEFRE (L) ARAT

Bauhinia Variegata Ink &
Chemicals (Zhejiang) Ltd.

ESEER (BNRHE)
BZERDLA

Best Lubricant Blending (Guangzhou
Free Trade Zone) Trading Ltd.

BREEBHERAR
Best Lubricant Blending
Limited

REREBRAF

Big Youth Investments Limited

BRI TRRERLR
Concord Chemical Storaging

Limited

BRCEEETARY
() BRAR
Dao Ming Business Management
Consultancy Service (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.

38. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

B,/
ik
Place of
incorporation/
registration

ZE
Thailand

Rl RRE
-BENERR
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

hE AR
-BENELR
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

hE AR
-BENERE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

BB
Hong Kong

0
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

FEIARE
-BEMELE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

SESEEE

BETR/EH

BAZBEAL

BRTRA/ Proportional of
HAMERZEE nominal value of
Nominal value issued share capital/

of issued capital/
registered capital

ZER —250,000% 49%%*
Ordinary - Baht 250,000

registered capital
held by the Group

BXRER 100%
—39,000,0007 7T

Capital Contribution
- HK$39,000,000

EREH 100%
-1,300,000 %%

Capital Contribution
- US$1,300,000

EREH 100%
—200,000% 7

Capital Contribution
- S$200,000

LRI -28T 100%

Ordinary - HK$2

LBk 10,0008 7T 100%
Ordinary - HK$10,000

LEIR - 160,000 7 75%
Ordinary - HK$160,000

EREH 100%
~1,000,000 7T

Capital Contribution
- HK$1,000,000

Principal activities
MERE

Property investment

HENEREH

Manufacture of and

trading in Coatings

HENEREH

Manufacturing of and

trading in Coatings

Trading in Lubricants

EEEEH

Trading in Lubricants

MERE

Property investment

REER

Investment holding

TEEBREARYE

Corporate management and

consultation services
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38. TEMBAT @)

DAEE

Name of company

REEELCIARLT

Dongguan Hang Cheung

Petrochemical Limited

REAPHBRRRRERAE

Dongguan Pacoil Lubricant
Co., Ltd

KEFRE(EMBRAA
(RSB AETEERAR)

Dachang Polymers (Huizhou) Ltd.
(Formerly know as Hui Yang

Da Chang Industrial Limited)

Full Power Investments

Limited

SMBRAF
Goldchain Limited

ERAERAT

Great Success Limited

ENERERESERAT

Guangzhou Lan Jun International

Trading Limited

RECIRRERAT
Handsome Chemical

Development Limited

A B ER &5 [15E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

B,/
ik
Place of
incorporation/
registration

RE KR
-BENELE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

alEiNES
-BENELE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

HE KR
-BENELE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

KBRLHE
British Virgin

Islands

9
Hong Kong

FEED
Western Samoa

Bl RRE
-BENERHE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

BB
Hong Kong

BRIRA/
AMERZEE
Nominal value
of issued capital/
registered capital

EN=1
-10,000,000 7T

Capital Contribution
- HK$10,000,000

EN=1
-50,000,000 7T

Capital Contribution
- HK$50,000,000

EN=1
-22,000,000 7T

Capital Contribution
- HK$22,000,000

EER-1%R
Ordinary - US$1

EER-28T
Ordinary - HK$2

EBR-1%ERn
Ordinary - US$1

EXER
-200,000%7
Capital Contribution
- US$200,000

LR — 600,000 7T
Ordinary - HK$600,000

SESERK
BETR/EH
BRAZED
Proportional of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Group

100%

60%

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%

100%

Principal activities

Manufacture of and
trading in Solvents and
Coatings

HENEEBER

Manufacture of and trading

in Lubricants

HENEEEH

Manufacture of and

trading in Coatings

RERR

Investment holding

nERE

Property investment

RERR

Investment holding

Trading in Lubricants

REZR
Investment holding
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DAEE

Name of company

RIECTRBERAR
Handsome Chemical

Services Limited
BERE(ER)BRAF
Hang Cheung Coatings (Hui Yang)

Limited

Hang Cheung Petrochemical

(International) Limited

BERMLIARLH

Hang Cheung Petrochemical

Limited

BERBRIMAERAT
Hang Cheung Procurement &

Logistics Limited

Hang Cheung (W.S.)
Limited

BREALRE (KHE) FRAA
Hong Kong Bauhinia Paints

Manufacturing (Greater China)

Company Limited

A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

B,/
ik
Place of
incorporation/
registration

0
Hong Kong

lEPN
-BENERHE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

RBEZHE

British Virgin

Islands

9

Hong Kong

9
Hong Kong

EEEDR
Western Samoa

9

Hong Kong

BRIRA/
AMERZEE
Nominal value
of issued capital/
registered capital

LR - 60,0007
Ordinary - HK$60,000

EAER
- 13,900,000% 7
Capital Contribution
- US$13,900,000

ZBR-1E7T

Ordinary - US$1

LIFIR —800,00058 7T

Ordinary - HK$800,000

LER-28T
Ordinary - HK$2

LER-1%ER
Ordinary - US$1

LB —149,665B 7
BER 33587
Ordinary - HK$149,665
Deferred - HK$335

SESERK
BETR/EH
BRAZED
Proportional of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Group

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%**

Principal activities
REAERS
Provision of treasury

services

SUENEE
BERER
Manufacture of and
trading in Solvents and

Coatings

SUENEE
BERER
Manufacture of and
trading in Solvents and

Coatings

SUENEE
BERER
Manufacture of and
trading in Solvents and

Coatings

AR
Merchandising of

Solvents and Coatings

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

ERCIHREERDAA
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DAEE

Name of company

IFRELIRRERAT

Jiangmen Handsome Chemical

Development Ltd.

IFERIRRERLF

Jiangmen Heng Wah Chemical

Development Limited

IMAHRBREERAR

Jiangmen Thansome Solvents
Production Ltd.

APERBERAR

Pacific Oil & Chemical Company

Limited

APFRERBHERAR

Pacific Special-Lube Limited

Primer Limited

Prophet Investments Limited

ENEBESERAT

Runfeng (Guangzhou) Trading Co., Ltd.

A B ER &5 [15E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

B,/
ik
Place of
incorporation/
registration

B ARE
-GEABLE
Mainland China

- equity joint venture

hE KR
-BENMELE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

RE KR
-BENMELE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

BB
Hong Kong

EB
Hong Kong

FEED
Western Samoa

RBRLEE
British Virgin

Islands

FEIARE
-BEMELE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

BRIRA/
AMERZEE
Nominal value
of issued capital/
registered capital

EN=1
—44,800,000 7T

Capital Contribution
- HK$44,800,000

—6,000,000 77T
Capital Contribution
- HK$6,000,000

—53,000,000 7T
Capital Contribution
- HK$53,000,000

LB —290,00057
Ordinary - HK$290,000

EBR 10,0007
Ordinary - HK$10,000

EBR-1%ERn
Ordinary - US$1

EER- 1%
Ordinary - US$1

BAER
—200,000%7T
Capital Contribution
- US$200,000

SESERK
BETR/EH
BRAZED
Proportional of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Group

75%

75%

75%

60%

60%

100%

100%

60%

Principal activities
YENEEEH

Manufacture of and

trading in Solvents

HENEERA

Manufacture of and

trading in Solvents

HENEERA

Manufacture of and

trading in Solvents

BENEEWEH
Manufacture of and

trading in Lubricants

BENSENEH
Manufacture of and

trading in Lubricants

RERR

Investment holding

REZR
Investment holding

EEHEH

Trading in Lubricants

Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited 2006-2007 Annual Report
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DAEE

Name of company

R ESERRERAT

Shenzhen Best Lubricant

Blending Limited

REESHRMERAR

Tianjin Best Lubricant

Blending Co., Limited

TM Holding Limited

EBERBIR (APBEEEXRY)
BRAR (FERE (BP9
BEEERS) BRA7)

Totalle Procurement Logistics
(Macao Commercial offshore) Limited
(Formerly known as Handsome Chemical

(Macao Commercial offshore) Limited)

ERfEe (8E) ARAR

Yip's H.C. (Holding)
Limited

ERAT(LB)BRAF
Yip's Chemical (Shanghai)

Co., Limited

Yip's Chemical (BVI) Ltd.
(Formerly known as Yip's Hang
Cheung (Holdings) BVI Ltd.)

A B SR &5 [i5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

B,/
ik
Place of
incorporation/
registration

RE KR
-BENELE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

domestic enterprise

RE KR
-BENELE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

KBRLHE
British Virgin

Islands

Py

Macau

BE

Hong Kong

HE KR
-BEMELE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

REELHS
British Virgin

Islands

BRIRA/
AMERZEE
Nominal value
of issued capital/
registered capital

BXER
~1,000,000 AR

Capital Contribution
- RMB$1,000,000

EN=1
—8,400,000/ 7T

Capital Contribution
- HK$8,400,000

BBER-1ERL
Ordinary - HK$1

LIEIR —100,0008 %

Ordinary - MOP$100,000

LB~ 999,500 7
ERER 50087
Ordinary - HK$999,500
Deferred - HK$500

ERER
—2,500,000% 7T

Capital Contribution
- US$2,500,000

EER 50087
Ordinary - HK$500

SESERK
BETR/EH
BRAZED
Proportional of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Group

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%*

100%

100%

Principal activities

Trading in Lubricants

HEREEBER

Manufacture of and

trading in Lubricants

BEBE
Holding of trade-mark

BERBRANRE |
EBREEXRRITH

Commercial and services
agents, oversea
selling activities and

back offices

REZRRERRY

Investment holding and

provision of services

HENEEREREH

Manufacture of and
trading in Solvents and

Coatings

REER

Investment holding

ERCIHREERDAA
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DAEE

Name of company

ERREFRAF

Yip's Ink and Chemicals
Company Limited

ERHE (KEERAH

Yip's Ink & Chemicals (Group)
Limited

ERHSE(LE)BRLT

Yip's Ink & Chemicals (Shanghai)
Company Limited

ERhS (FIL)BRAR

Yip's Ink & Chemicals (Zhongshan)

Company Limited

ERIXZRERLT
Yip's Industrial
Holdings Limited

Yip's Pacific Limited

AT EERERAR

Zhanjiang Best Lubricant
Blending Ltd.

A B ER &5 [15E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

B,/
ik
Place of
incorporation/
registration

0
Hong Kong

9
Hong Kong

FEIARE
-BEMELE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

FEIARE
-BEMELE
Mainland China
- wholly owned

foreign enterprise

BB
Hong Kong

KBRLHE
British Virgin

Islands

B KB
-ARAELE
Mainland China
- equity

joint venture

SESEEE

BETR/EH

BAZBEAL

BRTRA/ Proportional of
HAMERZEE nominal value of
Nominal value issued share capital/

of issued capital/
registered capital

TER—-2008 7T 100%
Ordinary - HK$200

registered capital
held by the Group

LER-28T 100%
Ordinary - HK$2

BAER 100%
—4,340,000% 7T
Capital contribution

- US$4,340,000

EREH 100%
—26,000,000 87T

Capital Contribution
~ HK$26,000,000

LA - 10,0007 75%
Ordinary - HK$10,000

LI —36,251,0008 7 60%
Ordinary - HK$36,251,000

EAER b
—3,800,000% 7T

Capital Contribution
- US$3,800,000

Principal activities
EERH

Trading in Coatings

REER

Investment holding

HENEHEEH

Manufacture of and

trading in Coatings

HENEHEEH

Manufacture of and

trading in Coatings

RERR

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

Manufacture of and

trading in Lubricants
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38. TEMBAT @)

* %

130

B A8 2 & = #Bauhinia Paints (Thailand)
Manufacturing Limited EE & 2 A/ » LA T
WIRAKRATZHBAT °

FHAEEIFE ZIRLER D EERER ST
ARDFABRRAEZBERHEEAERATR
RASREG LRE o 158 MEBEREF
BEAREE) EEZBREFRZERD X
Z &7 100,000,000,00058 7t » BIEFE AR5
BEASERAANDARGBEEPRERENSE
REBBELERD T ZER

ETESRABERE 22 EWB AR @ FHER
RUFEREMEESS ©

B Yip's Chemical (BVI) Ltd. FAZAN D B B #4%
B MEHEMBARNYARERS -
BRETEZEZEK ] —BSMRBPIN - FEH
BAREEL £ AHTERYL &
MzitE o

ERFAFIAEBZHBARNESRAS
FEAEEEGHEERBEZIENBL
A EERAHIREMME QB ZFES
BRUREE -

EHBATNZ-ZZEELtE=A=1+—HB%
5 P E R R T 23855 o

38. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

* %

As the Company controls the composition of the board of directors
of Bauhinia Paints (Thailand) Manufacturing Limited, this company is

treated as a subsidiary of the Company.

The deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, carry no
right to dividend or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
general meeting of the company. On a winding-up, the holders of the
deferred shares are entitled out of the surplus assets of the company
to a return of capital paid up on the non-voting deferred shares
but only when holders of ordinary shares, namely, the Group, have
received in full the return of capital paid on them and, in aggregate, a

total sum of HK$100,000,000,000.

As detailed in note 35, ZBLB is deemed to be a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Except for Yip's Chemical (BVI) Ltd. which is held directly by the
Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly held. All subsidiaries
operate principally in their respective places of incorporation/
registration unless specified otherwise under the heading “Principal

activities”.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
or liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 31st

March, 2007 or at any time during the year.

ERLIRBEARLE —EEAE-ZTLFEFH
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A B ER &5 [15E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. Financial Information of the Company

—EELF —EERE
2007 2006
FEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
RB AR ZRE (FzEa) Investment in subsidiaries (note a) 112,700 112,700
REEE Current assets
HibEW R R FE 508 Other debtors and prepayments 355 177
—RMEB AR 2R Amount due from a subsidiary 372,363 395,523
IRITHERR Bank balances 786 237
373,504 395,937
REIEE Current liabilities
EstEA Accrued charges 590 762
REBEERE Net current assets 372,914 395,175
EEFE Net assets 485,614 507,875
BAREE Capital and reserves
B& AR (BtEE 29) Share capital (note 29) 48,164 47,656
B (MisEb) Reserves (note b) 437,450 460,219
BRRES Shareholders’ funds 485,614 507,875
MieE Notes:
@ RHELRZRE (@  Investment in subsidiaries
—ETLF —EERF
2007 2006
FET FExT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FELMRH - BAEAASARR Unlisted shares, at cost 112,700 112,700

LW Z BREE TR B Yip's Chemical
(BV) Ltd. REKMBRRR-—AN—FAREE
BEBEEARAERERAAEAZELERE
IREVFEMETH

The carrying value of the unlisted shares is based on the book values
of the underlying net assets of Yip’s Chemical (BVI) Ltd. and its
subsidiaries at the date on which the Company became the ultimate

holding company under the group reorganisation in 1991.

ARNBANZZEZLE=ZA=+—HBZHBLT
HEHNT ISR EMEE38 o

Detail of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st March, 2007 are

set out in note 38.
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39. KRR AWM BER =

(b)

132

&

(b)
KNG THE COMPANY
RZZZRFMA—H At 1st Apri, 2005
BRELRGBEER  Recognition of equity settled
DEST share-based payment
REBREETEMEAT  Share issued at premium upon
R 2 &8 exercise of share options
KEELHF Profit for the year
ERRE Dividends paid
RIBERE At 31st March, 2006
ZB=+-H
RERBETHEMEIT  Share issued at premium upon
Rip2EE exercise of share options
KEEHF Profit for the year
ERRE Dividends paid
R-ZELE At 31st March, 2007
ZA=t-8

] F 2K Z 45 Bl B Yip's Chemical
(BV)) Lid. RAARKNBEBRMHER 2 E
AEERDFEEAQATARKBEER
TR ZEEME ZE5 -

39. Financial Information of the Company

(continued)
Reserves
EEGHE  BREGRE
RIPEE  BARE Capital Share REH
Share Special redemption option  Retained &t
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
FEn Fir TER FEL TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
228,622 77,700 5,038 - 121,835 433,195
- - - 1,258 - 1,258
5,505 - - (110) - 5,395
- - - - 79,741 79,741
- - - - (59,370) (59,370)
234,127 77,700 5,038 1,148 142,206 460,219
9,534 - - (541) - 8,993
- - - - 49,935 49,935
- - - - (81,697) (81,697)
243,661 77,700 5,038 607 110,444 437,450

The special reserve of the Company, which is available for distribution,

represents the difference between the book values of the underlying

net assets of Yip's Chemical (BVI) Ltd. at the date on which its shares

were acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of the

Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.

ERCIHREERDAA
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